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Corporate Profile
NG

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The
shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on |7 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. ("MOBI Shenzhen”), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co., Ltd.
("MOBI Jian"), MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Xian") and MOBI
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK").

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and
base station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystems in China. Our business consists of
the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem
and solutions that are the required components of mobile communication coverage
systems, including, wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA),
3G (TD-SCDMA, CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), satellite communication and
microwave transmission networks. We sell our products to network operators in
China and overseas directly for deployment into the networks they are constructing
and operating. We also sell our products to some of the world's leading wireless
network solution providers who incorporate our products into their wireless
coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they then sell to

network operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long

term relationships with our customers.
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Corporate Information
NAEEH

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KYI-1104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1902, Mass Mutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors
Qu Degian

Xing Qibin

Yan Andrew Y.

Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lee Wai Kuen

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hu Xiang
Lee Wai Kuen

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Zhang Han (Chairman)
Li Tianshu

Bao Fan
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Li Tianshu (Chairman)

Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Qu Degian

Yan Andrew Y.

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchali,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
China Merchants Bank
I/F, Wenhua Building, Shennan Road East, Shenzhen, China

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-86186100 (ext 1316) Mr. Tang Hanyi

Email: ir@mobi-antenna.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947

Corporate Information
NAEEH

FMZzES

R4 (£8)

A

aA

s

o
ERRABFER

BEPRELEZERAT
EBEHFERENERISIFAMFL17181712
E17165 45

FEAREBIT

R IRTT
REFEI T RERE X CAETE

B
E8 « BEN &
HERHD

Rk

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

REERRBREN
B 3% | 86-755-86186100 (9 1571316) B — 4

B E ! ir@mobi-antenna.com

1% 12 1% 5%
BEAMARFHEBIRLDE 947

BUBREARAT / 201068 3



Financial Highlights
B HE

Analysis of revenue by business type Analysis of revenue by customer type
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Financial Highlights
B HE

KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES TENKYE
(All amounts are expressed in RMB' million unless otherwise stated) (BRBHBI  MAETEAUAREBETT
271)
2010 2009
20104 20094
Revenue WA 1,041.4 980.2
Gross profit EF 255.0 280.5
Profit before taxation A0 F 99.0 126.4
Net profit attributable to shareholders PR 3R A A R 84.1 107.5
Total assets BEE 1,697.3 [,601.8
Net current assets REEEFHE 837.6 775.8
Net assets attributable to shareholders IRER MG & S 1,037.9 919.0
Inventories turnover days FER#EXE 145 140
AR turnover days JE W B FUB B R 8L 216 163
A/P turnover days FERER BB R E 247 213
Current ratio BN & 2.3x 2.1x
Gearing BEREELE 0% 7.9%
No. of issued shares, million shares* BEITHRMEE (BER) * 797.1 776.1
Net assets value per share, RMB BREEFEANEET) 1.30 .18
Basic EPS, RMB cents BREXBN(ARES) 10.56 2421
Return on average equity S S NIk 8.6% 17.2%

*

For comparison purpose, the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2009 is * BIELE - 2009512831 B K2 BTRM &
adjusted by the bonus issue of the Company pursuant to a shareholder resolution BEERAQERE2010F6 A1 HBBAKE
passed on | June 2010. RBERMETOAREITHAE -

BURRARAT / 2010F8% 5



® 6

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the board of directors of MOBI Development Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the business development

of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| December
2010 (the "“Year”).

Year 2010 was an extraordinary year. Despite there were unusual instabilities in both
the PRC and Indian markets, enlarged fluctuation in the global financial market,
commodity prices and Renminbi exchange rate, the Group overcame different

challenges and successfully expanded its shares in the global market.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group’s operating revenue for 2010 amounted to RMBI,041.4 million, representing
a year-on-year growth of 6.2%, while net profit decreased by 21.7% to approximately
RMB84.1 million. The decrease of net profit narrowed down significantly as compared

to the first half of 2010.The basic eamings per share was approximately RMBO.! .

In 2010, cash flow of the Group further improved with net cash inflow from
operations of approximately RMB38.7 million recorded. As at the end of the Year, the
balance of cash and bank deposits of the Group was approximately RMB437.8million.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Group faced various challenges in the global mobile market and economic and
financial environment in 2010. Since the issue of 3G licences in 2009, the PRC
operators slowed down the purchase of equipments for base stations in 2010 and
reduced the capital expenditure for base station network construction. Besides,
expansion of the PRC telecommunication equipment manufacturers into Indian
market was delayed due to the safety inspection of the Indian government in 2010.
Against the background of industrial trends and competition, the Group deepened
the cooperation with world-leading customers by capitalizing on its advantages in
customer base and technology. The Group successfully achieved significant growth in

sales to international customers and increased its shares in the international market.

Moreover, the Group has devoted to expand its market shares among the domestic
operators and enhanced the cooperation with domestic telecommunication
equipment manufacturers through its one-stop product and technology solution. The
Group won the biggest share in the tender for purchase of base station antenna of

China Unicom in 2010,

In 2010, more efforts were put in research and development and a world-class
laboratory for antenna directional pattern was built, which further enhanced
product technology of the Group and gained trust from international customers.The
CDMA RF subsystem products of the Group passed certification tests and secured
orders from the North American customers in 2010 and the Group was furthur
engaged to develop RF subsystem products for LTE. In addition, various antenna
products of the Group passed certification tests of international network solution
provider customers, including base station antennas which passed the tests and
secured orders recently from the European network operators. These achievements
have strengthened the Group’s capabilities to provide products and solutions for

international customers.

The Group also endeavoured to strengthen its research and development team and

optimise its management system in 2010 so as to enhance its core competitiveness.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

In view of the operating results of 2010, and taking account of the overall financial
condition, cash flow and future growth of the Group, the board of directors of the
Company recommends the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.02 per

ordinary share.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

FUTURE PROSPECTS
Looking forward, the Group will focus on domestic market and international market

simultaneously.

Under the influence of the competition in the industry and global economic crisis,
worldwide customers are paying more attention on costs, technologies and qualities.
At the same time, world well-known customers are having more stringent and longer
certifying process on suppliers. The Group has established a profound business
relationship with numerous world well-known customers and which was further
strengthened in 2010. As a result, the brand recognition of the Group has been
increased continuously. The Group will establish a more comprehensive product range
and technical support, including the provision of one-stop solution of antenna systems
and RF subsystems with multi-frequencies and multi-systems, with more competitive

costs, in order to further expand our business scale with customers worldwide.

Besides, emerging market has a comparatively low level of network penetration and
coverage. In 2010, the Group recorded a significant increase in products sold,
directly or through its customers, to emerging market, such as Indonesia and
Vietnam. The Group will focus on expanding of major emerging markets, including

Asia-Pacific, Latin America, Middle East and Africa.

As it is expected, in China, it will take several years for 3G network constructions and
2G networks are required to be further expanded, the demand of 2G, 3G products
and products with multi-frequencies and multi-systems will be boosted. The Group will
take full effort in participation of 3G and LTE opportunities, consolidate and expand

our market share in China for a satisfactory growth of result.

I 'would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and customers for
their kind support and trust, and our Directors and staff for their diligent work. The
Company and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and structure,
adapt strategies of product differentiation based on the technology and costs to
enhance its integrated competitiveness to ensure the stable growth of the operating
results of the Group.The Company strives to become a top class global provider of
radio frequency technology for telecommunication in order to maximise the returns

to its shareholders and the society.

Hu Xiang

Chairman and chief executive officer

Shenzhen, PRC
22 March 201 |

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Compared with last year, revenue increased by approximately RMB61.2 million, or
approximately 6.2% in 2010 to RMB1,041.4 million (2009: RMB980.2 million).

Sales of antenna system decreased by 17.6% to approximately RMB348.4 million
(2009: RMB423.1 million) whilst sales of base station RF subsystem and sales of
products of coverage extension solution increased by approximately 25.9% and
18.3% to RMB563.5 million (2009: RMB447.7 million) and RMB129.5 million (2009:
RMB109.5 million), respectively.

Antenna system

Driven by the grant of 3G licenses in 2009, the PRC network operators had a
strong demand of our 3G related products for their deployment of 3G networks,
while, the enhancement and broadening work of their current 2G networks were
kept going. As a result, there was a significantly increase of revenue in 2009
compared with previous years. In 2010, PRC network operators deferred and
carried out their network building in a slower pace than last year. However, the sales
of our advanced antenna products to existing and new customers for different
countries (including India, Indonesia, Vietnam, Mexico, the United States) rebound
significantly in the second half of 2010. This partly offset the unfavourable result led
by the PRC local market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

Accordingly, the revenue from our antenna system for dual/multiple usage*, 3G
usage®* and 2G/other usage# were reduced by approximately 12%, 10% and 37%,
respectively to approximately RMBI176.8 million, RMB105.8 million and RMB65.8
million. These show significant improvement as compared to the corresponding
decline of revenue by approximately 46%, 22% and 40%, respectively as recorded in

the first half the year.

(*  This represents CDMA/GSM fixed-downtilt and remote electric-downtilt

antennas and Multi-band/Multi-system antenna.)
(**  This represents W-CDMA antennas and TD-SCDMA antennas.)

(#  This represents all other antennas not mentioned above.)

Base station RF subsystem

We recorded an encouraging growth of revenue in 2010 despite the deferral of
procurement by PRC network operators as well as the associated influence to a
network solution provider customer in the first half of the year. Our diversified
customers base and full range of sophisticated products enable us to capture

different opportunities in different markets.

Revenue from base station RF subsystem products for 3G usage* improved
significantly from a decline of approximately 65% in the first half of the year to a
decline of approximately 20% to approxiamtely RMB85.4 million in the full year of
2010. Whereas, revenue from base station RF subsystem products for 2G/other
usage** surged further from a growth of approximately 29% in the first half of the
year to a growth of approximately 40% to approximately RMB478.1 million in the

full year.

(*  This represents CDMA 2000 RF devices, TD-SCDMA RF devices and W-
CDMA RF devices)

(**  This represents GSM RF devices and all other RF devices not mentioned
above.)
Coverage extension solution

We dedicate to achieve a balanced portfolio of products. During the year, revenue
from aesthetic antennas recorded a growth of approximately 26% to approximately
RMB37.9 million. At the same time, revenue from electric cables and other products

recorded a mild growth of approximately 13% to approximately RMB87.5 million.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Customers

As discussed above, the deferral of procurement by PRC network operators from
first half to second half of 2010 resulted in a reduction of revenue from them.
Revenue generated from PRC network operators, namely China Mobile
Communication Corporation, China United Telecommunications Corporation and
China Telecommunications Corporation, was totalling approximately RMB302.6

million as compared to RMB349.8 million in 2009.

Despite an approximately 49.7% reduction of revenue from ZTE Corporation
("ZTE") was recorded in first half of the year, a strong recovery of revenue was
recorded in the second half of the year. PRC network operators resumed
procurement as well as the implementation of ZTE's network building projects in
various emerging countries led to a huge demand on our antenna products and
base station RF subsystem products. As a result, our sales to ZTE reduced mildly to

approximately RMB315.5 million as compared to RMB333.0 million in 2009.

Our commitment to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long
term relationships with our customers contributed to the fruitful growth of our
revenue from a wide range of international customers. Sales to Nokia Siemens
Networks and Alcatel-Lucent increased by approximately 40% and 226% to
approximately RMB253.6 million (2009: RMBI81.1 million) and RMB122.9 million
(2009: RMB37.7 million), respectively.

The deployment of our products by our diversified international customers into
their network systems strengthened the worldwide awareness of the brand name of
MOBI.

Gross profit

In 2010, we recorded an approximately 9.1% decrease of gross profit to
approximately RMB255.0 million in 2010 (2009: RMB 280.5 million) and gross profit
margin was reduced from 28.6% in 2009 to 24.5% in this year It was due primarily
to the intensified competition among the vendors in PRC, reduction of revenue
from 3G products which generated higher margin in 2009 and higher proportion of

revenue was generated from lower margin 2G products as demanded by customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB WR DM

Despite competition among vendors posed pressure on gross profit margin of 3G
antenna products, such adverse effect was compensated by the sales of newly
developed advanced dual/multiple usage antennas. They were more value adding to
our customers and generated higher gross profit margin to us. Our antenna segment
achieved an improvement of gross profit margin from approximately 29.3% in 2009

to approximately 30.5% in 2010.

In 2010, a higher proportion of revenue was generated from GSM RF devices which
generated lower gross profit margin. As a result, gross profit margin of our segment
for RF subsystem products reduced from approximately 27.7% in 2009 to
approximately 23.2% in 2010.

Despite we recorded an increase of sales of aesthetic antenna which generated
satisfactory gross profit margin, fluctuation of raw material costs led to the decrease
of gross profit margin in our electric cables and other products. Accordingly, the
overall gross profit margin of products for coverage extension solution reduced

from approximately 30.1% in 2009 to approximately 13.8% in 2010.

Other income

Other income increased to approximately RMBI13.0 million. It was attributable to
the increased bank interest income arising from the net proceeds from the listing of
the Company's share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“IPO”) completed in

December 2009 as well as increased government grant.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased from approximately RMB5 1.8 million in
2009 to approximately RMB47.5 million in 2010. It was primarily due to the
decrease of transportation, logistic cost and business development expenses as a
result of reduction of sales of antenna products. Saving of the aforementioned
expenses was partly offset by the increase of staff cost as a result of increased

average headcount for business expansion.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased from approximately RMB65.9 million in 2009 to
approximately RMB80.9 million in 2010. The reasons included: (1) appreciation of
RMB against HKD, USD and EURO that led to an exchange loss on the Group’s
assets which were denominated in such foreign currencies; (2) business growth led
to the increase of headcount, wage rate and related statutory obligations; (3)
professional and advisory retainer fee incurred upon listing of the Company; (4)
increased depreciation charge and maintenance expenses; and (5) rental expense

incurred for the new production plant located in Baoan, Shenzhen.

Research and development costs

During the year, the Group recognised approximately RMB5.9 million development
cost as intangible assets. After the capitalization, research and development costs
increased from approximately RMB36.5 million in 2009 to approximately RMB37.1
million in 2010. It was mainly attributable to the increased material costs and testing
fees for development projects tailormade for customers and increaed depreciation

charge arising from new equipments.

Finance costs

Although the bank borrowing interest rate was lifted in PRC, the Group reduced its
bank borrowing to save finance costs. As a result, finance costs decreased from

approximately RMB4.4 million in 2009 to approximately RMB3.5 million in 2010.
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Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation decreased by approximately 21.7% to approximately RMB99.0
million (2009: RMB126.4 million). Net profit margin before tax charge reduced from
approximately 12.9% in 2009 to 9.5% in 2010.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses reduced from approximately RMBI19.0 million in 2009 to
RMB14.9 million in 2010. Effective tax rates calculated from the tax charged to the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income over the profit before tax were

approximately 15.0% and 15.0% for 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year 2010 decreased by approximately 21.7% to RMB84.1 million
(2009: RMB107.5 million). Our net profit margin was approximately 8.1% in 2010,
compared to |1.0% in 2009.To conclude, decrease in our net profit margin was due
to the reduction of sales of dual/multiple usage and 3G products that previously
commanded higher gross profit margin, reduced gross profit margin and more
operating expenses were incurred upon the expansion of operation scale for future

development in Shenzhen, Jian and Xi'an.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS
Prospects

Looking forward, the Group will pay synchronized attention to the domestic and
international market and continue to focus on RF technology for wireless
communication, especially on base station RF technology and RF technology of other

wireless communications.

Customers

Aiming to become a leading provider of RF technology for mobile communications,
the Group will strive to offer its RF solution to internationally renowned network

solution providers and network operators.

The Group is one of the few providers offering RF solutions to both wireless
network solution providers and network operators worldwide. In 2010, our sales to
these overseas customers increased by over 50% and this further enhanced the
recognition of our brandname. In addition, the Group's products have passed the
certification tests and secured orders from clients in North America and Europe.
Research and development activities of various new products such as LTE (Long
Term Evolution, an evolution over 3G technology) products are also well under way.
We believe that our presence in international market will grow continuously with

the support of a more comprehensive products and technology portfolio.
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Moreover, as the network penetration in emerging markets remained low, the
products sold by the Group and through wireless network solution providers
customers to emerging markets, such as Indonesia and Vietnam, also increased
significantly in 2010. With the increasing demand for telecommunications, the
development of 3G network and the resumption of sales to Indian market in the
second half of 2010, the Group will keep focus on the rapid growth in emerging
markets, including Asia-Pacific Region, Latin America, Middle East and Africa, and
provide customers with one-stop solutions of base station RF technology.

According to the domestic and international experience in establishing network, the
3G network establishment in the PRC is expected to last for several years.
Continuous development of 3G terminals and increasing data application will drive
the growth of 3G network establishment in the PRC . In addition, in view of the
demand for network capacity expansion due to the increasing data flow in 2G
network, the Group believes that the capital expenditure of domestic operators will
grow again in the future, which in return will increase the demand for the antenna
and coverage extension products of the Group from domestic operators as well as
the demand of RF subsystem products from network solution providers.

Products

In 2010, we continued to invest in research and development and further upgraded
our product technology capacity by establishing a world-class laboratory for testing
of antenna directional pattern.

For antenna system products, the Group achieved remarkable progress in expanding
the markets of overseas network operators and wireless network solution providers
in addition to further consolidating the leading position in the domestic operator
market in 2010. Various antenna products of the Group passed certification tests of
international wireless network solution providers customers, including base station
antennas which passed the tests and secured orders from European network
operators. Our ability to provide products and solutions for international customers
was significantly enhanced. We have emerged as a leading domestic provider of
various antenna with multi-frequencies and multi-systems which have been deployed
in networks for various overseas projects.
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In respect of RF subsystem products, our CDMA RF subsystem products passed
certification tests and secured orders from the North American customers in 2010.
The Group were also commissioned to develop RF subsystem products for LTE. In
addition, with the launch of various RF subsystem products with multi-frequencies,
the demand of 3G, 4G and RF subsystem products with multi-frequencies are
expected to increase substantially. The Group has achieved a breakthrough in the
development of its ceramic loading filter technology, which has significantly enhanced
the function of filter after miniaturization. The Group also provides RF subsystem
solutions to network operator customers, such as tower amplifiers. One-stop tower
mounted solutions integrating antenna system products and other products are also

provided to customers.

In respect of coverage extension products, the optimisation and improvement of 3G
network construction will stimulate the demand of base station antennas and base
station RF subsystem as well as boosting the demand for aesthetic antennas, in-door

antennas and relevant technology services.

Conclusion

The Group is one of the few one-stop solution providers of RF technology for
global network operators and network solution providers in the PRC.The Group
has a wide range of well known customers and diversified income sources, which

contributes to the positive and stable growth of the Group.

The Company and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and
structure, adopt strategies of product differentiation based on the technology and
costs, maximise the market opportunities in 3G, LTE and the new generation
wireless technology. The Group will also strive to enhance its integrated
competitiveness to ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the Group

and to maximise the returns to its shareholders and the society.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations and capital requirements from cash generated from
our operations, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings.
Our primary uses of cash have been for our increased working capital requirements,
capital expenditures on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land

use rights for our real properties in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian in the PRC.

BEE W RO

ST RRERL 20105 RNEE CDMAST 52
FREAERBRILEEPASHRE LG
B REE-SXTAELTEMG AT RAE
@ AN AREAETEREEGETR
GEM  BiRRIC AGHZ B AT R
EnNEReBEER AN A5ENNE
MERRRRMERERE - MEBEERSER
B ERRMEERE - WH - REEMMA
HELHEPRUEBEHBETRRNERE - 1
BERAR  UHEXRGEREQRECER
ERFREBBE-UANERIR -

BELHERL  BACHBERNBEE
£ HaethE - RYRBRRERILGIAF R
BB BRTRERCRR - EAXREK
DA T 18 B Bl BR A5 MO BB SRR B IE £

aE

AEERBAVHERENELHERRARE
AR - BRR T ROGHERM L ER - B
BEZOMEEPMETLICMBARR  EF
MRAZBERFEGMBTHER -

AREEREREERTEPABREEBNE
A RBMESL  RABENERLCHEFR
B - &A(L3G - LTEER T —HRESRMN TS
BE RAAKENGAHREN  BEREEZE
BORRER AEEEDERRNMLE

EXER RBEERUBER

ARFENEY  HERRHENESIEERE
MFTERAELNRE XN AR LERE
AFEXR - ARAINAE T ERERCARAE
ANEEEEHR BRELERBHFFBELRH
XRWERDBEFERY - FLNALNE
EE) L E R -

EBRARAR / 2010 £

17 ®



@ 18

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

MOB! 3 1t I

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB837.6 million (2009: RMB775.8 million) including inventories of approximately
RMB307.9 million (2009: RMB315.5 million), trade and notes receivable of
approximately RMB698.7 million (2009: RMB531.5 million) and trade and notes
payable of approximately RMB585.6 million (2009: RMB480.3 million).

The Group maintained an effective management of its working capital. For the year
ended 31 December 2010, average inventories turnover, average receivables
turnover and average payables turnover are approximately 45 days (2009: 140
days), 216 days (2009: 163 days) and 247 days (2009: 213 days) respectively. We
offer credit terms generally accepted in the antennas and base station RF
subsystems manufacturing industry to our trade customers. In general, the average
credit period for local network operators is longer than global network operators

and solution providers.

As at 3| December 2010, the Group recorded a pledged bank balances of
approximately RMB13.0 million (2009: RMB26.5 million), cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB437.8 million (2009: RMB553.3 million) and no short-term bank
borrowing (2009: RMBI27.1 million). The current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) increased to approximately 2.3 times as at 31 December 2010
from 2.1 times as at 31 December 2009. The gearing ratio (bank borrowings divided
by total assets) was 0% as compared with a gearing ratio of approximately 7.9% as
at 31 December 2009. The interest rates on the Group's bank borrowings are

designated in both fixed rate and floating basis at prevailing market rates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position
and adequate resources to support the necessary operating funding requirement

and foreseeable capital expenditure.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than RMB expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales and purchases
and certain trade receivables and bank balances of ours are denominated in USD,
Euro and HKD. We currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency

exposure when the need arises.

After the listing of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, significant portion
of our bank balances are denominated in HKD. The Board currently considers that
the appreciation of RMB should have an unfavourable impact on the Group’s
financial results. The management carried out various measures to limit foreign
exchange exposure. As at 3| December 2010, HKD equivalent to approximately

RMB124 million was kept in our bank balances.

APPLICATION OF NET GLOBAL OFFERING PROCEEDS

In December 2009 and January 2010, the Group issued a total of 193,958,000
shares (including 18,443,000 shares issued upon the exercise of over-allocation
option). The offer price was HK$3.38 per share and the net proceeds from the IPO
were approximately equivalent to RMB550 million after deduction of related
expenses. As at 31 December 2010, the Company has already applied approximately
RMB169 million in accordance with the description of the use of proceeds in the

prospectus of the Company dated 4 December 2009 (the “Prospectus”):

—  Approximately RMB32 million, RMB34 million, RMB5 million were applied in
our office and plants in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian, respectively, for the purchase
of equipment, construction and development of production lines and factories

buildings;
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— Approximately RMB37 million was applied to finance our research and
development efforts including engineers, testing fee and research materials for
our Shenzhen R&D centre. Whereas, approximately RMB I million was applied
in our plant at Jian for product developments and RMB5 million was applied in

the operation and expanding of our R&D centre in Xian;

—  Approximately RMB55 million was applied as general working capital of the

Group.

The balance of the net proceeds will be also applied in line with the description in

the Prospectus.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 2,900 staff. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB130 million for the year ended 2010.The
remuneration of the Group's employees is determined on the basis of their
responsibilities and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the
skills and expertise of relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and

discretionary bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, bank balances of approximately RMBI13.0 million were
pledged to bank to secure the banking facilities provided to the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2010, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities.

DIVIDEND

To share the results of the Group among all the shareholders, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share out of
distributable reserve of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December
2010 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of menbers of the
Company on 27 May 201 1. The proposed final dividend will be paid in or before July

2011 following approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM"™).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May 2011 to 26
May 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 pm on 23 May 201 I.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance

to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices
and continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control

management and reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
and the rules on the Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Rules”) as set out
respectively in Appendices 14 and 23 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 3|
December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 3| December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The following

sets out the composition of the Board, by category of Directors:
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Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors:
Qu Degian

Xing Qibin

Yan Andrew Y.

Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard
to the business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required
expertise to the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have
extensive management experience in the wireless communication antennas and base
station RF subsystems industry. The biographical details and experience of the

Directors and senior management are set out on pages 33 to 41 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships

among members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted
with the responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business
plans, financial objectives, capital investment proposals and assumes the
responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for implementing its business strategies and managing
the daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive Directors and

members of senior management of the Group.

Corporate Governance Report
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as
warranted by business needs. During the year ended 3| December 2010, four Board
meetings, three audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) meetings and three
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) meetings were
convened. Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of the members of the

Board are set out in "Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least 14 days prior
to the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the
Directors not less than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make an informed decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable

notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with one of them possessing appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be

independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development
directions for the Group and for the daily management of the business of the
Group, implementation of the policies, business objectives and plans set by the

Board and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation of the Group.

Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Hu Xiang is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr.
Hu is one of the founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the
telecommunication industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides our
Company with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the implementation
and execution of our Group's business strategies. We shall nevertheless review the

structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company's Articles of
Association, one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every

three years.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Li
Tianshu, Zhang Han and Bao Fan and two non-executive Directors, namely Qu

Degian and Yan Andrew Y. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by LiTianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors
and senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration

packages. The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
»  formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

*  recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration

of Directors and senior management;

. determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior

management, including benefits in kind and compensation payments;

*  review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with
any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal

for misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and
*  determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Remuneration Committee held
three meetings to review the Company's remuneration policies, the terms of the
service contracts and the performance of all executive Directors and senior
management. Details of attendance of Remuneration Committee meeting of each of
the members of the Remuneration Committee are set out in “Attendance of

Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note

|2 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
The Company does not have a nomination committee. Currently all new
appointments to the Board will be considered by the Board whose deliberations are

based on the following criteria:

*  possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board;

*  ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities

effectively; and

*  possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in

corporations/organizations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit Committee
comprises all the independent non-executive Directors. Zhang Han is the chairman

of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the
Directors, the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties
relating to, among other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and
external audits and to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing

independent view and supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have
sufficient accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge

their duties. The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:
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to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such

appointments;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for

non-audit services;

to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports
and the auditor’s report to ensure that the information presents a true and

balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;
to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal

control system; and

to review the external auditor's management letter and any questions raised

by the auditor to the management and the management’s response.
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Three meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
December 2010. The Audit Committee reviewed, together with the management
and the external auditors, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and statutory compliance. In addition to reviewing the Group's internal control
system, the Audit Committee also reviewed the independence of the external
auditors and approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors. Details of attendance of Audit Committee meetings of each of the
members of the Audit Committee are set out in "Attendance of Individual Directors

at Meetings" below.

ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The CG Code stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors at
meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2010, respectively, is set forth in the table

below:

Name of Director Esps
Hu Xiang ik
Wang Guoying FEE
Qu Degian [EfEg
Xing Qibin JREC
Yan Andrew Y. 8 fk
Yang Dong FE

Li Tianshu FRE
Zhang Han A

Bao Fan BN
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without
prejudice to and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth
in the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since
|7 December 2009, the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
adopted a stringent system to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting
transactions (“Relevant Transactions”) in which any Directors are interested in, and
transactions with any of our connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules)
or any company in which the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually or collectively, owns a direct
or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including transactions with ZTE
Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co,, Ltd., Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi
Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd,, and Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd.) (“Relevant

Companies”), as follows:

(1) Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a
majority of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, provided that any non-executive Director or independent non-
executive Director interested in the transactions in question will declare his or

her interest and will abstain from voting on such matters;

(2)  Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in

matters relating to the Relevant Transactions;

(3) An executive committee (the "Executive Committee”) comprising the chief
financial officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been
established to monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to
prepare semi-annual report in relation to the execution of the Relevant
Transactions (“Semi-annual Report”) for the supervisory committee's (the

“Supervisory Committee”) review;

(4) The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of
conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms
and conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions,

devise and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow,
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review Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings
to the Board and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
Relevant Transactions will be entered into in the interest of the Company and

its shareholders as a whole; and

(5) The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory

Committee in the Company's interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, two meetings were held by the
Supervisory Committee to review the report on Relevant Transactions in respect of
the sales and purchase entered into by the Group with the Relevant Companies
pepared by the Executive Committee. As reported by the Supervisory Committee,
(i) it had reviewed and approved the master agreements entered into by the Group
and the Relevant Companies and considered the terms and conditions therein were
fair and reasonable; (ii) it had reviewed the supplier procurement bidding documents
and internal procurement procedures of the Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed
rules and guidelines for Executive Committee and the Executive Committee had
followed accordingly; and (iv) it had reviewed the report submitted by the Executive
Committee. The Supervisory Committee considered Relevant Transactions
conducted during the review period were in line with the respective master
agreements and the internal procedures of the Group, were on fair and normal
commercial terms and there was no other matter that needs to be brought to the

attention of the Board and shareholders of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with
the audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the total remuneration in respect of audit
services provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMBI.6

million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed

as the external auditors of the Company for 201 .
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects. Management
provides such explanation and information to enable the Board to make an

informed assessment of the matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared

in accordance with applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of

three months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard

shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient in providing
reasonable assurances that the Group's assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, transactions are properly authorized and proper
accounting records are maintained. The Group has applied an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and this
process includes updating the system of internal controls when there are changes to

business environment or regulatory guidelines.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of
the Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The
Group is going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular

dialogue with investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on

each substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010

MR

EFEEENAARSANTA2ENGERE
BMERR MRS - EEERERERE
B BERGHSHEZEEEDMETE -

ESRNXBENBEARRRIEEN KR
® BRUBBRREARETRER G ER

e

AEBERE ETRARERIEAEERE
ZEARRERMEERE -

AR EE1Z

EXCRRBARARRE2ENAMENARR
WA ERM - LERYME 28 SRNA
frEmmzsl RERRRERFAEEEE -

EFECRILAEASE MR HIET A
W MEZHNERHEEERAEBEESS
KEEERAREEMSIHEX XHEEER
ERAZEREEHLE ARECRARKEN
BFER - FHEREFAEEMSRNEAR
B BREEXRENEERIEEHENA
HMEEHIE

RERNBE
AEEDRIPAFHERRBBNTRERE -
BRENEREFELTHRE  BXAEN - 25
BEURBRRAGEREEEH - A5EKE
FRRRERMAR - U EHEREEIR

BREFASRERREMHAEZERIRE
BMiwe - RRAS® L BHBRARNSE
VEHREZBIURER BREFEER -



Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 57, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors
and the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief
executive officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a
director of MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19
December 2002. Mr. Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian
Infrastructure University (now Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring
in radio communication in August 1981. During the period from 1972 to September
1981, Mr. Hu worked in the hydraulic transmission and control department of the
Northwest Industrial University. Mr. Hu then served as chief of the planning and
supply department at Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd. for the
period from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Hu joined our Group in August 1999. Mr. Hu was a
director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from June 2002 to June 2007
and the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. from
March 2000 to September 2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Wang Guoying, aged 56, is an executive Director, and also a director of MOBI
Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director and chief executive officer of MOBI Xian. Mr.
Wang was appointed a Director on 19 December, 2002. He is also the Vice
President in Research and Development of our Company and MOBI Shenzhen. Mr.
Wang is qualified as a senior engineer. In December 1979, Mr. Wang graduated from
Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now Xidian University)
majoring in antenna engineering. Mr. Wang has held such positions as assistant
engineer, engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey
and Control Technology Institute during the period from 1987 to 1999. During this
period, Mr. Wang received a second class award in PRC National Scientific
Technology Advancement, a Model Individual Award for PRC National “Eighth Five-
Year Plan” Scientific Technology Advancement, a second class award and a third class
award respectively in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry of Machine
Building and Electronics Industry. Mr.Wang was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng
Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from June 2002 to June 2007. Mr. Wang joined our Group in
August 1999.
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Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 48, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr: Qu was appointed a Director on |9 December 2002.
Mr. Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further
obtained the qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June
1993 to April 2003, Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and
auditing centre and the deputy chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was
appointed as the deputy general manager of Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong
Shebei Co., Ltd. and since September 2007, has been the general manager of
Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd.. Mr. Qu joined our Group in
December 2002. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Limited, a

substantial shareholder of the Company.

Xing Qibin, aged 45, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Xing was appointed a Director on 19 December
2002. Mr. Xing graduated from the Northwest Telecommunications Engineering
College (now Xidian University) with a bachelor of science degree in computer
software in 1986. In 1989, Mr. Xing graduated from Research Institute of Post &
Telecommunications as a postgraduate student. Since 2005, Mr. Xing has been the
chairman and general manager of Shenzhen Jufei Optoelectronics Co., Ltd. Mr. Xing
joined our Group in December 2002. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration

Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

Yan Andrew Y. aged 53, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI
Shenzhen, MOBI Jian, MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr.Yan was appointed a Director
on 2 January 2003. He received a master of art’'s degree in International Political
Economy from Princeton University in the United States in 1989. Mr.Yan was the
founder of and has been the managing partner of SAIF Advisors Limited, an
investment advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited. Mr. Yan is currently an
independent non-executive director of Fosun International Limited (stock code:
0656) and China Resources Land Limited (stock code: 1109); a non-executive
director of Digital China Holdings Limited (stock code: 0861), China Huiyuan Juice
Group Limited (stock code: 1886) and NVC Lighting Holding Limited (stock code:
2222), all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan is
also an independent director of Giant Interactive Group Inc. (listed on the New York
Stock Exchange with stock code: GA) and ATA Inc. (listed on Nasdag with stock
code: ATAI) and a director of Acorn International Inc. (listed on the New York
Exchange with stock code: ATV), Global Education & Technology Group Limited
(listed on Nasdag with stock code: GEDU) and Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain
Management Ltd. (listed on the Small and Medium Enterprise Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code: 002183). During the period from June
2003 to February 2006, he was an independent director of Eastern Communications
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600776.5S), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from 2004 to September 2008, he was an independent non-executive director of
China Digital TV Holding Co. Ltd. (stock code: STV) and during the period from
September 2002 to June 2009, he was an independent non-executive director of
China Qilfield Services Limited. (stock code: 2883), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.Yan joined our Group in January 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Yang Dong, aged 39, is a non-executive Director and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr.Yang was appointed a Director on | January 2006. Mr.
Yang is a charterholder of the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Mr. Yang
graduated from Tsinghua University in 1995 with a bachelor degree in computer
science. In 1997, Mr. Yang obtained a master degree in accounting from the
University of Southern California, United States. Mr.Yang has been working for SAIF
Advisors Limited, an investment advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited and is
currently a partner at an affiliate of SAIF Advisors Ltd. Mr. Yang was a director of a
Nasdaq listed company, Perfect World Co., Ltd. (stock code: PWRD) during the
period from September 2006 to July 2008 and is currently an independent director
of it. Mr.Yang joined our Group in January, 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed
a Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1976
majoring in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business
economics at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at
Universitat Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research
assistant in the business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the
period from March 1995 to September 1995, Mr. Li worked in Germany for Friatec
Aktiengesellschaft, an international manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to
become the future managing director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first
worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft, an international machinery manufacturing
enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of the management board of KSB and
then became the chief representative of its Beijing Representative Office. During the
period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of regional director of Messer, an
international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible for its business
development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits of its
joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northern China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China
Industrial Gas Co,, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System
Co., Ltd. Since 2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech
Technology Co., Ltd,, a technical promotion service provider and sales service
provider. Mr. Li has valuable experience in international corporate management and

enterprise resources planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Zhang Han, aged 47, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq
listed company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit
committee since July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the
accounting and financial reporting processes as well as external and internal audit of
the Company. Mr. Zhang received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking
University in 1985, He later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe
International Business School in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at
Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the
Manager in the securities department of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co.,
Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the deputy manager at the finance
department of China National Technical Import & Export Corporation, and also the
general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory Co., Ltd. from 1994 to
1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the general managern,
investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management Co, Ltd., a
fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co., Ltd., a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great
Wall Fund Management Co., Ltd., a fund management company in China, from 2004
to 2005. Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd., a Chinese
venture capital firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due
diligence work in respect of the financial performance, management and corporate
government quality of various companies and conducting financial analysis of listed
companies throughout his various tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang

joined our Group on 25 November 2009.

Bao Fan, aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009. Mr. Bao obtained a master's degree in Economics from
Handelshgyskolen Bl in 1995. Mr. Bao was the chief strategy officer of Asialnfo
Holdings, Inc,, a leading [T service and software company in China, from July 2000 to
March 2004. Mr. Bao is currently chief executive officer of China Renaissance
Partners, an investment bank headquartered in Beijing which he founded in 2004. Mr.

Bao joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shao Zhiguo, aged 47, is our vice president in Sales and Marketing, MOBI Shenzhen
and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr. Shao graduated from the Northwest
Telecommunications Engineering College (now Xidian University) with a bachelor
degree in wireless equipment structure design in 1984. In 1998, Mr. Shao obtained a
master degree in systematic engineering from Xi'an Electronic Technology University.
During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held such positions as engineer
and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey and Control
Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and
development in the area of telecommunication measurement and control
technology and has received a second class award in Scientific Technology
Advancement of the Ministry of Machine Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao
is a senior member of the Chinese Institute of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of
Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June 2007. Mr Shao joined our Group in August
1999.

Huang Jianjun, aged 48, is our deputy general manager in Antenna business of the
research and development department of MOBI Shenzhen. Mr. Huang graduated
from Northwest Telecommunication Engineering College (now Xidian University) in
1983 with a bachelor's degree in magnetic field engineering and specializing in
antenna. Mr. Huang worked at Shijiazhuang Communications Survey and Controlling
Technology Research Institute from August 1983 to April 2001, where he was
awarded the qualification as an engineer in October 1992 and as a senior engineer

in fixed wireless systems in 1998. Mr. Huang joined the Group in April 2001,

Huang Youyuan, aged 58, is our deputy general manager in RF business of the
research and development department of MOBI Shenzhen. Ms. Huang graduated
from Shaanxi Radio and Television University in industrial enterprises management in
1986. Ms. Huang qualified as an accountant in 1993 and as a senior accountant in
1998. Ms. Huang had worked at China Aerospace Times Electronics Corporation
during the period from December 1968 to April 2000 and her last position there

was senior accountant. Ms. Huang joined the Group in March 2001.
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Liao Dong, aged 40, is our deputy general manager in Sales and Marketing of MOBI
Shenzhen. Mr. Liao graduated from Chongging University with a doctoral degree in
mechanical manufacturing and its automation in 1999. Mr. Liao had worked at ZTE
Kangxun Telecom Co., Ltd. during the period from July 1999 to February 2001 and
at ZTE Corporation president’ office during the period from February 2001 to
March 2003. Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.

Han Jianrong aged 50, is our deputy general manager in Production of MOBI
Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Han graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University with a bachelor degree in foundry engineering in 1982, Mr.
Han has over 20 years of experience in production. Mr. Han was appointed as an
engineer at Xi'an Aerospace Engine Corporation and No.77| institute of China
Aerospace Corporation in 1989 and 1993 respectively, and was awarded his
professional qualification as senior engineer by China Aerospace Corporation in
1997. Mr. Han joined the Group in February 2000.

Kong Weitong, aged 47, is our deputy general manager of Internal Operations of
MOBI Shenzhen. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shaanxi
Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of Economics and Finance of Xian
Jiaotong University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked at the China Aerospace
Corporation from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and audit, where he was
appointed as an accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in 1999. Mr. Kong
became a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public

Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined the Group in May 2002.

Chen Zhaojun, aged 34, is the chief financial officer of the Company and MOBI
Shenzhen, and is responsible for the financial management of MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Xiamen University
in July 1999, and later obtained a master's degree in economics from Xiamen
University in July 2002. Mr. Chen worked as Senior Project Manager in the
Investment Department of ZTE Corporation from 2003 to 2004. Mr. Chen has been
a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC since 2006. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
July 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AAHEREREEE

Lee Wai Kuen, aged 37, is our deputy financial officer, authorized representative and ZEE 3TH - RARFAIMEI KRR - K
company secretary. He is also the deputy financial officer of financial centre of MOBI RERDAME - BAREL RIS B LA
Shenzhen. He is responsible for our company secretarial, financial, accounting ~ BB E - AEAQARNARWE B - €
management and internal audit affairs. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor degree in FEBRABEGRER cFREEBREEIA
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Certified Public EREGHBLBM - RABEELHTMOEGH
Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ~ HLEEFAIREBFTARLHMASHNER
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lee 28 - TEAEBRBISFMEE - S5t NE
has |5 years of experience in finance, accounting and auditing. Mr. Lee had worked e - FRECEBEREFEBARZH L
in an international accounting firm and had held company secretary and senior ~ MARIMNARWERSRITBEEA - TEER
financial positions in several listed companies. Mr. Lee joined our Group in August 2007 FBAMAREHE -

2007.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16

December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on |7 December

2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of
antenna system, base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage
extension solution. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state of
affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 59

to 130.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 27 May 201 1.
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Report of the Directors
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following is a 5 years summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the

audited financial statements.

MEERHER

TREAASERTRANBEENEERE
ERAE BERARERREEGMBERE -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
2010 F 2009 4F 2008 £ 2007 2006 £
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFTRT AREBTT AREFRT ARETT
RESULTS -
Revenue A 1,041,420 980,222 671,182 626,806 360,956
Profit before tax 75 B ) B 98,955 126,438 69,477 59,537 33,500
Tax 1A (14,850) (18,968) (7,552) (2,764) (2,019)
Profit for the year FRFHE 84,105 107,470 61,925 56,773 31,481
Profit attributable to KARER A
owners of the Company FEAE RIS 84,105 107,470 61,925 56,773 31,481
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FERBEE 203,819 146,659 135,054 94,789 74577
Current assets REEE 1,493,501 1,455,184 658,485 547,763 302,176
Current liabilities VeI (655,857) (679,392) (463,290) (359,467) (162,285)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (3,569) (3499) (2,673) (3236) (1297)
Net assets BESR 1,037,894 918,952 327,576 279,849 213,171
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME BERRE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the

year are set out in note |5 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

On 13 January 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.00000| each of the
Company at price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant to the underwriting
agreement of the IPO of the Company. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed
on | June 2010, a bonus issue of 72,446,099 shares of USD0.00001 each of the
Company is issued to the persons whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis of one share
for every ten shares held on | June 2010.These new shares rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all aspect.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during the

year are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2010, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB504.2 million. This amount includes the Company's share premium
account of RMB572.7 million at 31 December 2010, which may be distributed
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 92.4% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 30.3%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than 30%.

The Directors’ interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the

paragraph headed "Directors’ Interest in Contracts” on page 52 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian
Xing Qibin
Yan Andrew Y.
Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement

by rotation and re-election.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr Xing Qibin, Mr.Yan Andrew Y. and
Mr. Yang Dong, non-executive Directors will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board still
considers each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent from

the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of

the Group are set out on pages 33 to 41 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT
Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with our Company commencing from 17 December 2009 for a

term of three years, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with our Company for a term of three years commencing from 17
December 2009 (except for Li Tianshu whose engagement with us commenced on

I July 2007) and renewable by mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION

Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the

financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share option scheme

during the year:

Bk

RN BB ACHERT BRI E M T R M 5226

TRREALABRESNEADE

“Exercise price Outstanding as Exercised Outstanding
per share at beginning “Adjusted on during as at end
(RMB) of the year bonus issue the year of the year
Name Date of grant BRITHEE  Exercisable period 9 BITALR FR FR
& R A (AE®) dTITEHE e R AT [k kA [=XeRd fe R AT
Directors:
=
Hu Xiang 15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 4,100,000 410,000 — 4,510,000
ikl
Wang Guoying  15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 1,750,000 175,000 — 1,925,000
FER
Qu Degian 15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.12013 600,000 60,000 — 660,000
B
Xing Qibin 15.1.2003 0.3208 15.1.2004 - 14.12013 600,000 60,000 — 660,000
FREH
Sub-total: 7,050,000 705,000 — 7,755,000
I
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EEERE
“Exercise price Outstanding as Exercised Outstanding
per share at beginning "Adjusted on during as at end
(RMB) of the year bonus issue the year of the year
Name Date of grant BRITHEE  Exercisable period 3] BITAR FR FXR
# & R A A (AE®) dTI&EHE e R AT E [Tk BT e R AT 2
Other participants:
Hth %
Participants 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 2,400,000 238,000 (20,000) 2,618,000
Participants 31.8.2005 0.6655 31.8.2006 - 30.8.2015 400,000 30,000 (100,000) 330,000
Sub-total: 2,800,000 268,000 (120,000) 2,948,000
Nt
Other employees:
Hitfgg
Employees 15.1.2003 0.3208 [5.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 1,750,000 175,000 — 1,925,000
(=]
Employees 31.8.2005 0.6655 31.8.2006 - 30.8.2015 10,507,500 1,011,750 (630,750) 10,888,500
EE&
Sub-total: 12,257,500 1,186,750 (630,750) 12,813,500
Nt
Total: 22,107,500 2,159,750 (750,750) 23,516,500
st

The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised was HK$3.03.

*  Upon passing of resolution for the bonus issue by a shareholder resolution on
| June 2010 and pursuant to the 2003 and 2005 stock incentive plans, the
exercise price of the share options granted under these plans and the number
of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription right
attaching to the outstanding share options were adjusted in accordance with
the terms of the plans and the supplementary guidance attached to the letter
from the Stock Exchange dated 5 September 2005 relating to adjustments to
share options.

BEBREETER S - RO ANEFER
MERI.0ET -

* R2010F6 A1BURERER A BB
AR E1T1% - 11520034 [ 20054 B {7
REE - BEZSHEME LERE
MITEERAZAETERENRTER
Rz RBEMERERETHRNEE
BRIEA AT 8 & R X FT20059F9 A
5HEREREE KR R T
S -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the
chief executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positons which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of SFO), or which, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"),

were as follows:

Ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of Director Nature of Interest

Number of shares

ESHERTHRAEBRRS - HER®D
REFHNERRAR
MR2010F12A31H - 5 - SRITHAES
WENBEARKRDAZEAE ZE (TER
ERREEEN ([EFREERA) EXVED)
FRA - HAROREFTPHEREESF L
BEROIEXVRBETRESHHENEARAR
BXAOERRAR (BREREEFRBER
PIEERARENERIAR) - IRERE
FREEHROIEI2EALFERARARFEDN
TaMregs AR BB LTEITAE
FETEFRZNRETR (MREFA)) A
BARADARIRBRANESIARLT :

AARAEER

Percentage of the

Company'’s issued capital

BEEMA EEiE ROBE EEAFERTRANED L
Hu Xiang Personal 25,404,500 3.19%
FiE! A Long Position

=9}
Wang Guoying Personal 27,207,400 341%
FEE A Long Position

R
Yan Andrew Y. Personal 742,500 0.09%
A fk A Long Position

=3}
Yang Dong Personal 742,500 0.09%
FR A Long Position
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Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors’ interests in share options of the Company are set out in

the Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 3|
December 2010, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Report of the Directors
EEERE

AARBRE

ESNARRBEERENESHBINAR
HBRRE] —&0 -

BrEXFTEEEI - 20106128318 » AL
AEFYARITRAERERRR AL E AR
HEER (BB RES RBEEAIEXVE) R
7 HBROIEFTFECBEEREESRE
EROIEXVBETRESHBBNEARAR
BRI ERIAR (BEREESF REEK
PIErESRRRENERIAR) - IRESE
HRHERIIEIEBRBERARABTEY
ZRMAREESAR - RBBIZETRAN
EANARBRANERIAR

ITERERRG  HBROXEFFREHE
#RER

BARAZEZRERITHABMA - 120105
12A318  RE(RAREERERITHAE
BRONRARRBEIRGD REB RN P HRARESR
AR ERIEXVHE2REID HAMAR
AEBNRERAR  ARFRARAREE
A REEEPIEBKRFE 2 ECRNERR
KEWT
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Ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of Director

Nature of Interest

Number of shares

Percentage of the

Company’s issued capital

ExEE BRtE BRAEE EARAERTREANES L
Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 230,607,300 28.93%
Holdings Limited EnfEAA Long position
HAEERBRAR =9}
SB Asia Infrastructure Fund L.P. Beneficial owner 168,299,994 21.69%
EnEBA Long position
=)
SB Asia Pacific Partners L.P. Interest of a 168,299,994 21.69%
controlled corporation Long position
R AR #ER =9}
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EERNENTPHER

As at 31 December 2010, Directors’ interests in a major customer were as follows:

ZTE Corporation (“"ZTE")

HE210F128318 - £EF EXFHTHNES

SHOTRHRRIMT

REAARGD AR R ([ &2RER)

*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin, Directors of the Company, are members .

of the 39 shareholders (“Beneficial Owners”) of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings

Ltd. ("Fangyi"), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

*  The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 16.6% o

in ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2010, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei

Co, Ltd. (“Shenzhen Weixiantong”). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49%

shareholding interest in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd.

“Zhongxingxin™), which in turn had approximately 33.87% shareholdin
gxing pp ba g

interest in ZTE.
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*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin together held approximately 5.60% o ¥ BERAMENERFEFRIIE
FiBH5.60% BHE - Hip - 7 - E
BRLMEWEBEN R L BOK
1 ERER S REAOBE -

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect
shareholding interests in ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen

Weixiantong.

HE20105128318 A EftEpthE=S
REKPHERIT -

As at 31 December 2010, directors’ interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co, Ltd. (“Kang Cheng”) RN R AR B AR LR ([RH)

Wang Guoying, Director of the Company, has directly maintained
approximately 12.0% equity interest in Kang Cheng, a supplier accounted for

7.7% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a

I5% shareholder of Kang Cheng.

Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shenglongfeng™)

Hu Xiang and Wang Guoying, Directors of the Company, have directly
maintained approximately 2.0% and 4.4% equity interest in Shenglongfeng, a
supplier accounted for 1.6% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2010.

The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Shenglongfeng
through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong
was a 20% shareholder of Shenglongfeng.

Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Shenglongfeng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

ARRESTRREBEREERIN
120%WBRRER - ED—FRIEAEE
HZE2010812A3B L FELEREE
7.7%H R IER -

EEBAABBENRIGLRBOR
o MEEARMANBE - R TE
BEHOBIR - B 15%E °

HA BERENMEWAESEA AN
KE BRERAIAELBNKRE &
BRBA B AE -

AITERESEXERAR ([EEL])

ARREEMPNIBERBEEERES
BRELA2.0%M44%HNE - ED—F
EARESEHZ2010512A31HILFER
HEE1.6% MR -

ERBAANBBERNRIERANE
o BEABERESHRE - RIIMT
BRERSNKRR  HH20%EER

B EEEMMENAEEEAAN
KE BRERFIELBORE B
ERAREIOMRE -
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Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxindi")

*  The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a
supplier accounted for 2.1% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen
Weixiantong owned 49% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn

had a 70% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxindi.

. Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December

2010.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter

[4A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares
of the Company in public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the

minimum public float as set out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE ENZEES
The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The ARAERUEREZES  HFAEEBAES
audit committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports cBREEERRE-AEHNTEE M
to the Board of Directors. EZERS -

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December  BHZZEBE2EEMASEEZE2010512H31
2010 have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company, who are of the HIEFERNEAHBRE  BRRZERKRTA
opinion that such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards and HBEHERRERRTI LR RHKE

legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR 73 4]

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte BRREBFAE LREFER  ENEAE
as auditor of the Company. e BERAGTMITARRAIZEAE -

On behalf of the Board REESZ

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. ELERERAR

Hu Xiang ik

Chairman I

22 March 201 | 2011437224
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO,, LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development
Co, Ltd. (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group") set out on pages 59 to 130, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditors’ Report

RS e

HELBRERATRR
(REESHEEMALAFRLA)

AR ERD A T R85 ) B F%5I R #5659
Z130EELERERAA([BAR]) RET
AE(GEIEEE]) MEEMBERE - tEs
B mEOIER2010F12A 31 B A& E I
RRBREEHEZA LFENGRE 2ERER
R RARRZDRERGARERERE
NRERBHBEREREMHAER -

ESHAEMBERERENER

BERREZAREREBEGTMAERME
BRPBHREENRBEARGRINKERE
REEELATHEAMBERE  URERES
RAREET B ERR AL BORIES - A
AR A MR RR N B R IR EF SR R T 5| 3
M B A SRR -
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B ZHE RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group as at 3| December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 201 |
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SERHERBBERR
For the year ended 3| December 2010

HZE 2010612 A 31 BItEE

2010 2009
20104 2009%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt & ARBTR ARETT
Revenue WA 7 1,041,420 980,222
Cost of sales #HE KA (786,435) (699,718)
Gross profit EH 254,985 280,504
Other income H b Y A 8 12,973 4,496
Research and development costs T B A AN (37,095) (36,547)
Distribution and selling expenses D NHERX (47,525) (51,767)
Administrative expenses TR X (80,912) (65,891)
Finance costs B RS A AN 9 (3,471) (4,357)
Profit before taxation 734 Bl s 98,955 126,438
Income tax expense P BF 10 (14,850) (18,968)
Profit and the total comprehensive RAREBA
income for the year attributable FE1L B 5 B A %
to owners of the Company 2HBALE I 84,105 107,470
Earnings per share AT
— basic (RMB cents) —EK (AREH) 14 10.56 2421
— diluted (RMB cents) %8 (ARED) 14 10.33 17.52
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR B AROR R R
At 3| December 2010

2010412 A 31 8

2010 2009
20105 20094
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B &x ARBT R ARBTFT
Non-current assets FERBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RS 15 172,048 118,175
Prepaid lease payments ERMEERE 16 20,683 21,154
Deferred tax assets EXERIBEE |7 5,657 7,330
Intangible assets BEEE 18 5,431 —
203,819 146,659

Current assets MEEE
Inventories "E 19 307,855 315,457
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H U AR K 20 734,337 559,466
Prepaid lease payments BAEERE 16 462 453
Pledged bank balances EEARITER 21 13,011 26,545
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LR 21 437,836 553,263
1,493,501 [,455,184

Current liabilities mEBEE
Trade and other payables 85 REMENERER 22 643,382 537,812
Dividend payable FERTAR 2 735 758
Tax payable T E 10,497 12,922
Short-term bank borrowings RHISRITER 23 — 127,135
Deferred income EEWA 24 1,243 765
655,857 679,392
Net current assets MEEEFHE 837,644 775,792
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 1,041,463 922,45
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A IEMRRHRE
At 31 December 2010

®2010€12 A31H

2010 2009
20105 2009F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P & ARBTT ARBT T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income WA 24 3,569 3,499
Net assets BREFH 1,037,894 918,952
Capital and reserves R K
Issued capital BEITRA 25 6 5
Reserves i 1,037,888 918,947
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AR EIHA ARG AR 1,037,894 918,952

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 130 were approved and FRIZ10ENGAMBFRELESTERN
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 201 | and are signed on 2011EIR 2B ERMBERETZE  THIUTE

its behalf by: EREREE
Hu Xiang Wang Guoying
73 IEX
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EX S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBREERE
For the year anded 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
Issued Share  expansion reserve Special reserve  Retained
capital  premium fund fund reserve  (Note 26) profits Total
B&f Rt LEBE EEER BH BREHR ®E
e afE E¢ 1R f#fE  (AE26) B2 @t
RMB000 ~ RMBO0OO ~ RMB0OO0O ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMB000  RMBO00O ~ RMB000  RMB'000
ARBT ARBTR ARBTE ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR
At | January 2009 R 200951 418 | 39,347 3034 16,500 2999 5463 260232 327576
Capitalisation issue of shares BRLE TR 3 3) — — — — — —
Issue on public floatation LHREST I 522,590 — — — = — 50591
Transaction costs attributable to BIRGORHKER
issue of shares — (25741) — — — — — (25741)
Exercise of stock options EEDE — 2,294 = — = (729) = 1,565
Profit and the total comprehensive B &I R
income for the year ELONCE — = = = — = 107,470 107,470
Recognition of equity-settled ERNERHEER
share-based payment AR 3 R #0308 - — — - — 491 — 491
Dividends paid ERRE — (851) — — — — (14149 (15000)
At 3| December 2009 M2009512 A31 8 5 537,636 3,034 16,500 2,999 5225 353553 918952
Transfer ELE — — — 8,763 — — (8763) —
Exercise of over-allotment option TR RE = 54,888 = = = = — 54,888
Transaction costs attributable to IR NR AN
issue of shares — (1,524) — - — — — (1,524)
Bonus issue of shares BITHIR (1) — — — — — —
Exercise of stock options TERRE = 728 = = = (203) = 525
Profit and the total comprehensive ~ FEEMRZEMALE
income for the year — — — — — — 84,105 84,105
Dividends paid BERRE — (19052 — — — — —  (19,052)
At 31 December 2010 M2010F12 31 H 6 572605 3034 25,263 2999 5022 428895 1,037,894

@ 62
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises
in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are
required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion fund and
a statutory surplus reserve fund which are non-distributable. Appropriations to such
reserves are made out of net profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are
decided by their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise
expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by

means of capitalisation issue.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share
premium of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. During 2010 and 2009, dividends,
to the extent in excess of the Company's retained profits, were funded out of its

share premium.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of MOBI
Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen”), a subsidiary of the
Company, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in connection with
the acquisition of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired pursuant to the
group restructuring, completed on |9 December 2002, at which time the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire equity

interest in MOBI Shenzhen.

A 3L 4 &
e EWR
For the year anded 3| December 2010

HZE 2010612 A 31 BILEE

REREARAMNE ([HE])IELENHAE
ERRERRTE - ARANPEFARAAEL
MENADKAEEREE  DERERES
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEREREMK

For the year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

2010 2009
2010 2009F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Operating activities &R
Profit before taxation 1% 510 22 98,955 126,438
Adjustments for: HATEBELFZ .
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses AR s E R AR D X8R — 491
Depreciation and amortisation e R#H 18,415 15,114
Write-down of inventories FEMH 830 1,017
Government grants related to assets HEERBNBN@EE (1,452) (1,181)
Interest income FEHA (3,689) (440)
Release of prepaid lease payments RN ST 462 434
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BB RZE
plant and equipment HE1E — 66
Finance costs BITS R AR 3,471 4,357
Operating cash flows before movements Rt EEELEFAIN
in working capital RERERE 116,992 146,296
Decease (increase) in inventories FERD (#Em) 6,772 (94425)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 kA AW RTIZ N (174,871) (197,307)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R EAMEARFIL N 105,418 159,727
Decrease in provision B — (500
Cash from operations REmEHRS 54311 13,791
Taxation paid [RANE;ZRE (15,602) (15,409)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities REEFPEL (FFR) ReFH 38,709 (1618)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN 3z B2 f
e IE@MLE-’FE(%:Z
For the year ended 3| December 2010

HZE 201012 A 31 BILEE

2010 2009
20104 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBETT
Investing activities REES
Interest received BUFE 3,689 440
Government grant related to assets REEMBNOBUNHE € 2,000 1,217
Development costs paid BN ERKAR (5,936) —
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank balances BEBRITESRRDS (5m) 13,534 (11.806)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELERAE (71,738) (27,187)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment REHFTERIE 107 82
Net cash used in investing activities KEESMARE TR (58,344) (37,254)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRGD ATE R 55,413 524,156
Transaction cost on issue of shares BITRMH R ZEAE (1,524) (25,741)
Dividends paid EfRRE (19,075) (14,671
Net funds arisen from THRERRE
discounting notes receivable R e W BR TR
and trade receivables BB %8 — (23,454)
New bank loans raised HIBRITER 156,265 207,135
Repayment of bank borrowings BEFTER (283,400) (130,000)
Interest paid ERFE (3,471) (4,357)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BMEEY (FA) ELRLFE (95,792) 533,068
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents IR&RHEFEY O ) = (115,427) 494,196
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R1ATENRERBEREEY 553,263 59,067
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December R12A3NBNERERREEEY
represented by bank balances and cash (BETHEBRRRS) 437,836 553,263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RN

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

@ 66

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) on |7 December 2009. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is 7
Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong Province, PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ (the “Group”) principal business is

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations applied in the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged ltems
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in

2008

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations applied in the current year
(Contd)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
HK - Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a

Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The application of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised Standards and

Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010"
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure - Transfers of Financial Assets®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets®

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009 ) Related Party Disclosures®

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights lssues’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 (Amendments) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)
New and revised Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

(Contd)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2010 or | January 2011,
as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 201 .
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 3.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 1.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | February 2010.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective will have no

material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The basis consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial

and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective

date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in

full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented seperately from the

Group's equity therein.

3.

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

@ 10

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal

course of business, net of discounts and related sales taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions

are satisfied:

B the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards

of ownership of the goods;

B the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the

goods sold;
B the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

B it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction

will flow to the Group; and

B the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage
extension solution is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has

passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below) are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit

or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the weighted average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

@® 12

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses

(see accounting policy on impairment loss on loans and receivables below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash

flows of the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial

re-organisation, or

—  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade receivables and
notes receivable that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30-120 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

@ 14

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited to profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the

assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, dividend payable and
short-term bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial

assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit

or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option

reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss

is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary

differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if all the

following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be

available for use or sale;

—  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible assets; and

—  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Research and development expenditure (Contd)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the
sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged to

profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment

losses (if any).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the

grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a straight line basis over the useful lives of the related assets. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expenses on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Income taxes

As at 3| December 2010, a deferred tax asset of approximately RMB5,657,000
(2009: RMB7,330,000) in relation to deductible temporary differences of MOBI
Shenzhen has been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position (note 17) while no deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses of RMB12,158,000 (2009: RMB8,379,000) of MOBI Technologies (Xi An)
Co,, Ltd. ("MOBI Xian") due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future assessable profits generated are more or less than
expected, a recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a recognition

or reversal takes place.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. Upon the listing of the
Company in 2009, the Group wholly repaid the short-term bank borrowings

during 2010 in order to maximise the return to owners.

The capital structure of the Group as at 3|1 December 2010 and 2009 consists
of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital, share premium and other reserves. The
capital structure of the Group as at 31 December 2009 also included short-

term bank borrowings disclosed in note 23.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital

structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and new debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 3| December 2010
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 6. MERBREEEEREE

Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the criteria for FHEEEREAERERBBRANE
recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases on which income and SEECR (BRERRER - st BEER
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and W2 B B SR E ) B0 A T AP L 3R B o
financial liabilities are disclosed in note 3. Details of these financial instruments ZECRIANFERENT :

are disclosed below:

Categories of financial instruments EtMIANES
2010 2009
20106 2009%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TF R ARETT

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including ER R ERERR

bank balances and cash) (BREFTEHBRERES) ,158,464 1,132,328
Financial liabilities TRAR
Amortised cost B 5 A A 622,609 652,909
Financial risk management objectives and polices MERREEREREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, AEENTIZSRIABRES RAM
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, YRS - EEM RIS - RITER
dividend payable and short-term bank borrowings. Details of these financial kRe BHREMENERR  EHK
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these BREHBTER - hEERMT AN
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set BFERNEBMTRE -SZEeRIA
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure HE B B0 [ B I % M A A B ) SR 0 B
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. nT - EREERVEREBRER - U

HRREEBBRAITIRE ORI -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash and pledged bank balances, which represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the end of
the reporting period. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables and notes receivable. The credit risk on trade receivables and
notes receivable are concentrated on top five customers of the Group. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable and notes receivable at the end of reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited because the majority of
the counterparties are international banks and state-owned banks with good

reputation.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number of customers in the
PRC. If the Group is unable to broaden the customer base and expand
relationships with major wireless network solution providers and major
network operators, the business may continue to be impacted by
unanticipated demand fluctuations which can have a negative impact on the
revenues and business, and an adverse effect on the results of operations and

financial condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F 1231 BILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. MBEREEEERHEE (&)
Credit risk (Contd) FERR (B)
The Group has a significant concentration of customers. For the year ended 3| AEENEFREST - B8E2010512
December 2010, aggregate sales to the top five customers of the Group RANBLEEE  MAAEPELAHEE
accounted for approximately 92.4% (2009: 88.1%) of the total sales. Amount BHEAREEHE B L92.4% (2009
due from them as at 31 December 2010 amounted to approximately F:88.1%) ° M2010F12A318 + U
RMB429,948,000 (2009: RMB273,656,000), representing 81.3% (2009: 82.6%) IARRPHFIELN M AKKA429,948,000
of trade receivables (before making allowance for doubtful debt) as at 31 7T (20095 : AR¥273,656,0007T) ' 16
December 2010. These major customers are PRC network operators and 201012 A31H M U E SRk (KAt iR
domestic and overseas wireless network solution providers with good REREH) £981.3% (2009%F : 82.6%) °
reputation. ZETERPRAARHEENTEPE
@Mﬁ&iﬂﬂﬁ\\,ﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁrﬁﬁﬂ i3
e
Currency risk E¥EAR
The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade AEEENEHERKE  BAKEN
receivables, bank balances, trade payables and borrowings of the Group are HETRKE SRR - RITEEH - FEHE
denominated in United States dollar (“USD"), Euro ("EUR”) and Hong Kong SEFRREFUET([ET] B
dollar (“"HKD"), currencies other than the functional currency of the respective (TB]) kg (MBxl) sHE (% 5‘?5%
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group THEHREEERNEE) 1§$§E<
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the EARENE R $$. B Al & E
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging ]SS 0k B R '8 EEJ'QEQ%%
significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises. SN EE Rl B - %gﬁ%%)ﬁﬁ#jﬁéﬁﬁ’\]%;
R o
The carrying amount of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets RERMRUNEHENEBEERE
and monetary liabilities at the end of reporting period are as follows: BRENREERT
2010 2009
20106 20095
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE 8 BE B8R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTT ARETR
usD ETT 77,241 5,557 39973 13,386
EUR 2 4511 — 10,749 —
HKD BT 124,578 2,546 498,139 3,467
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Currency risk (Contd)

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (2009: 5%) change in the
RMB against USD, EUR and HKD.The 5% (2009: 5%) represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analyses of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment
of translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2009: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A negative
number indicates a decrease in the post-tax profit where RMB strengthens
against USD, EUR and HKD. For a 5% (2009: 5%) weakening of RMB against
USD, EUR and HKD, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit.

6.

BEEREEBEEREE (&)
E%ER (&)
TREEAKRBEARELET - R K
B TE5% (20094 : 5%) BB SRS ¥
1& © 5% (2009%F : 5%) Jh & 12 |8 {o
EEAEMAaEBHOTME - ARER
%i&ﬁﬁﬂifﬁ%@%a@&hﬁ%lﬁ%ﬂ PR ) B 2%
EoMEEREERABRERAR
H 5% (2009 : 5%) 57|\¢1§‘[T“§7Jf’ﬁ
HEELARETE - BEERTARER
En - BMTRABATABEBRTHE R

WY e MARBHEET BTk BELE
5% (2009%F : 5%) M= @ Fif&'q Fl

SHARSERRNPE -

At 31 December

RI12A31H
2010 2009
2010 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Decrease in post-tax profit (i) 752 18 % AR A (1)
If RMB strengthens against USD WAR®EETHE (3,007) (1,131
If RMB strengthens against EUR WAREEBRTIHE (9t1) (457)
If RMB strengthens against HKD WARBREATHE (5,477) (24,733)
(i)  This is mainly attributable to the outstanding foreign currency receivables iy #Z= EI;&K BASERINEHE
and bank balances at year end as a result of the foreign currency sales in TARRAIRD FEHRIE R F
the Group and the proceeds from issue of shares of the Company. ﬂiﬁi & EEMIMNE IR TR R ER1T
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the EEERA ARFEMNRRY TR
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the FARNERR - B RE TR
exposure during the year. The sensitivity analysis to change in RMB against BENIERR - ARBHBTEXRY

HKD is mainly attributable to the bank balances as a result of the proceeds

from issue of shares of the Company in December 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from pledged
bank balances (note 21) in 2010 and 2009. In 2009, the Group was also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk from fixed rate borrowings (note 23)
which were wholly rapid during 2010. Interest bearing pledged bank balance
and bank balances are mainly short-term nature. Therefore, any variations in

interest rate will not have a significant impact on the results of the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances (note 20) and variable-rate bank borrowings (note 21) in 2010 and
2009. In 2009, the Group was also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk from
variable-rate bank borrowings (note 23) carried at The People’s Bank of China
Benchmark Interest Rates (“PBOC Rate”) of 4.86% per annum which were
wholly repaid during 2010. In 2010, the Group's cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing market rates of the bank
balances denominated in RMB. In 2009, the Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing market rates of the bank
balances denominated in HKD.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following illustrates the potential effect on the post-tax profit for the year:

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F 1231 BILFE

BEEREERBEREE @)

R =@

AEBRN 20105 R20095F E ¥ 2 E MR
TR (21 TEL N A TFEN XA
i © 20094 - A& BRE HE S EE (K
H23) EARMRFEMNRER  mAFHE
EER20105E5 - st SEHEMRITH
BRBRTEHRIEREHNLE - Bt
EAMNEREYR I EHAEEANREE
REATE -

AKLER 20105 K& 2009F 75 #f £ 4R 17
ek (M 3E20) RoF BIRTT 1K (KT3E21)
FHONHR2RENERER - 2009F © K
SENEHRFBEARRITEENE
(TARBIIFIE]) BF4.86%:F B H)F
BRITEE (MiE23) EANBRERFE
BB - ZEEESR2010FEE - 2010
FAEERSRENXRAREIESET
EUARBHEZRITLEHRBITTSEF
KHKEE - 2000F AEBR L REFIX
R EEEFRUB T ENRITEHRE
A% ERE

AN B AT EMN R EHHOR o AT
EEEBEERNERR YEEFRE
EEAMEAFRER

HERBRREBMMNBEZENT

2010 2009
20106 2009%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
(Note a) (Note b)
AR®BTR ARBTT
(Kfta) (H&ED)
If the interest rate goes up i 2 T
Increase in post-tax profit B f& s A m 1,015 1,320

Note:
(@) If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and all other

variables were held constant.

(b) If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and interest rate
on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher and

all other variables were held constant.

M
(a) BRETEBOHEEN0BRUTH
BHMEHRETE -

(b) BERBITABRF KL MIOMEEE - &
)7 BIRITIE E /A RIE NS0 EEE -
ML ERRFIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F 12 B31 BILEE

6.

@ 88

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Interest rate risk (Contd)

The following illustrates the potential effect on the post-tax profit for the year.

MHEREREERER (&
NERRB (8
RTHIIEFABEN RN EETE -

2010 2009
2010% 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000
(Note c) (Note d)
AR®BTR ARETT
(H&Ec) (KtEd)
If the interest rate goes down fiéi 7 = T b2
(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit s CRd) (807) 82

Note:
(c) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign
currencies had been | basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and all

other variables were held constant.

(d) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign
currencies had been | basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and
interest rate on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis

points lower and all other variables were held constant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group are approximately RMB526.2million
(2009: RMB447.5 million).

The Group relies on bank balances and cash, and bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. Undrawn borrowing facilities of the Group are approximately
RMB306,720,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009: RMB121,948,000).

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived

from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B TSR R M EE

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F 1231 BILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. BIHEBREEBREZRIBE (&)

Liquidity risk (Contd) REBESER (£
Liquidity risk table RBESERE
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 3| December
effective undiscounted 2010

interest rate Payable 01030 3060 611090 9wl 180tw365 cashfows HWI0E
MEFS  on demand days days days days dys  BAFE AR
EBAZ EZREE 020X 31Z60R  61Z90K 91Z180K 1802365% BeR Kaf
% RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMB000

% ARBTR ARBTR ARRBTZ ARMTR ARMTR AR¥TZ AR%TZ ARETR

2010 WI0E
Trade and other payables BAREMERER — 19T BeT0 100479 9694 34187 53T 68 68
Dividend payeble EfifRE - 735 — — = - — 735 735
139,952 136,670 109479 96,964 34187 5357 622,609 622,609
Camying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2009
Interest rate Payable 0030 3ltod0 61109 910180 1800365 cashilows K209
TEEY  on demand days days days days dys  EBRAE  12A%18
ERFZ EEZRER  0E0K  NEGR  G1E0XK 91ZEI80K 180Z5K  Bek  KAEE
%  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBO0O
% ARBTR ARWTR ARNTR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR
2009 20095
Trade and other payables B AREMERER — D9l M6 808 55587 113 815 5506 525016
Dividend payeble EfiRE = 78 = = = = = 78 756
Short-term bank borrowings BHRTER 448 - 10475 1438 4038 45409 7064 18794 12713
127,669 86921 95,209 95925 72555 26289 654,568 652909
Fair value AYE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined in tRHEERERAGRHN LA TERARE
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash F B BRENRRERESTME
flow analysis. The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial cEHERR REBENAFAGEY
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated Wiﬁ%ﬁ@imﬂﬁ?& REENEREE
financial statements approximate their fair values. EHEANTERE
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For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F 12 B31 BILEE

@ 90

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods or services

delivered or provided.

The Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Antenna system - manufacture and sale of antenna system and related

products

Base station RF subsystem - manufacture and sale of base station RF subsystem

and related products

Coverage extension solution - manufacture and sale of a wide array of

coverage products

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010

EXERIHBER
ARBEERRARRAEZEZWE
B ARARNEmS R HERE RS
EERNFEDHBRR -

AEERBEBEMBRELEFESHANA

EFAHAT -
ABER - RERHERBREZRRAHE
Em

HUGHET R - BERHE R UG IR
TEGEREHER

BERMIR-BERHESEREE

[m]
{u]u]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e mERMEE

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 A 31 BILEE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) EEBERIHER B
Information of segment revenues and segment results ERIBUARSBEENER
2010 2009
20106 20096
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Segment revenues 2 EUA
Antenna system PN ¥ 348,376 423,051
Base station RF subsystem UG T RS 563,512 447,656
Coverage extension solution BERMAR 129,532 109,515
1,041,420 980,222
Segment results DEEE
Antenna system RRFH 94,159 108,931
Base station RF subsystem UG T RS 114,614 107,499
Coverage extension solution BELEMAR 9,117 27,527
217,890 243,957
Reconciliation of segment results 7 BP 4B ET Al
to profit before taxation:
Other income H A 12,973 4,496
Other expenses Hth 52 (128,437) (117,658)
Finance costs BIRSR AR (3,471) (4.357)
Profit before taxation 7% A1 42 7 98,955 126,438
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For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F 12 B31 BILEE
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) EXBERIHER &)
Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont'd) FRIBURARSBEENER (&)
2010 2009
20105 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBETT
Other segement information: Hitt o MEHR -
Depreciation e
Antenna system NS 3,937 4,499
Base station RF subsystem UG T RS 6,369 4,689
Coverage extension solution BELEMAR 1,464 1,085
Segment total DEPHEE 11,770 10,273
Unallocated amount AP eHE 6,140 4,841
Group total SRS 17,910 15114
Research and development costs: MBS
Antenna system N ) 12,112 14,939
Base station RF subsystem UG T RS 16,260 16,558
Coverage extension solution BERHAR 8,723 5,050
Group total SEAE 37,095 36,547
Amortisation: B
Antenna system PN EY 226 —
Base station RF subsystem B BT RS 279 —
Group total SEBE 505 —

Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external
customers. There are no inter-segment sales during the two years ended 3|
December 2010.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3. The Group does not allocate other
income, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses, finance costs
and income tax expense to individual reportable segments when making
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assessing their
performance.This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker

for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such
information is not reported to the chief operating decision maker for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7.

Entity-wide disclosures:

Information about products

Revenues from each group of similar products within the reportable segments

are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F 1231 BILFE

EXBROBER (@)
EEXEREEHR:

FRERNESR
AERSBASERBERNRAD
T

2010 2009
20105 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBTR

Antenna system RBRER

CDMA/GSM fixed-downtilt antennas CDMA/GSM [&lFE MAKX 4R 77,777 120,718

CDMA/GSM remote CDMA/GSM =128 38 T B R 4R
electric-downtilt antennas 50,424 39,092
PHS antennas PHS X% — 294
Yagi antennas NARKRER — 399
W-CDMA antennas W-CDMA X £ 76,418 87412
TD-SCDMA antennas TD-SCDMA X £ 29,376 30,582
Multi-band/Multi-system antenna %08,/ % ZBERIR 48,559 40,030
Microwave antennas e 25,693 48,005
Other antennas =R N 40,129 56,519
348,376 423,05

Base station RF subsystem HIL T F R4

CDMA 2000 RF devices CDMA2000 51 3825 14+ 32,704 77,798
CDMA RF devices CDMA g #8233 {4+ 13,964 21,637
GSM RF devices GSM 5t #8814 450,789 282,441
CDMA/GSM RF devices CDMA/GSM 5t #A 22 14 — 31,505
TD-SCDMA RF devices TD-SCDMA 5 #8285 {F 31,293 2,478
W-CDMA RF devices W-CDMA 57 #8 28 4 21,402 26,490
Other devices H fth 2844 13,360 5,307
563,512 447,656
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F12 A31 BILFE

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont'd)

EXERIBER (@)
ER2EREER: (&

Information about products (Cont'd) BHERWNER (8
2010 2009
20105 20096
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Coverage extension solution BERMWER

In-door antennas ENKRE 4,176 2,16
Aesthetic antennas FERE 37,861 30,109
Other products H fth 2 on 20,746 33,920
Electric cables EE 66,749 43,325
129,532 109,515
1,041,420 980,222

Information about major customers FHRIEEFMNER

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10%

of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

RERERE RSB SEEES
BB10%HNEFHRAMT :

2010 2009

20105 20095

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ET R AREFT

Customer A! ZE A 315,522 333,007
Customer B2 =P B2 253,610 181,123
Customer C3 ®FEC® 171,366 192,335
Customer D? B D2 122,910 N/A i F 4

revenue mainly from antenna system and base station RF subsystem
Z revenue mainly from base station RF subsystem
revenue mainly from antenna system
i The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the total sales of

the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 3| December 2010

HE2010E12 A 31 BILEE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. EEXBERIBDER B
Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont'd) ERZEREER: (B
Geographical information i & & F
The reportable segments of the Group are mainly operated in the PRC and AEENR2HAHFERFEREIN
overseas (mainly Finland and India). An analysis of the Group's geographical (FERFHERAE)LEXD - TRH
information on revenues attributed to the region on the basis of the FIAEBIREFEE D /M & FE (S
customer's location is set out in the following table: BRAR MR ER DT
2010 2009
20106 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETT

PRC H 933,840 863,908
Overseas S
India 0E 5,569 28,362
Finland NG 57,488 77,114
Others HA 44,523 10,838
Subtotal 4N 107,580 116314
1,041,420 980,222
All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are AEBMAERDEE (BT RBEER
located in the PRC. SN SRR B o
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OTHER INCOME 8. HftlrA
2010 2009
20105 20096
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Government grants BT &
- related to expense items —ERXEAEH 6,245 1,742
- related to assets (note 24) —BREERB (M 24) 1,452 [ 181
Compensation income ERA 932 1,049
Interest income FEWA 3,689 440
Gain on sales of materials and scraps $HE MR R B R e 43 —
Others 2ty 612 84
12,973 4,496
FINANCE COSTS 9. MBRA
2010 2009
20106 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARBETT
Interest on bank borrowings RITRE A B
- wholly repayable within five years —2HERTFANER 3,471 4,357

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010



10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F 1231 BILFE

10. FIERIAX

2010 2009
20105 2009%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT

Current year: KERE :
PRC income tax B AT AE B 13,177 20,298
Deferred tax (note 17) EREBIE (HE17) 1,673 (1,330)
14,850 18,968

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from

income tax. It is not subject to tax in other jurisdictions.

MOBI Shenzhen was established in Shenzhen, PRC, with applicable tax rate of
[5%.

In 2008, MOBI Shenzhen is a High and New Technology Enterprise defined by
Shenzhen Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen
Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of
Taxation and therefore is entitled to 5% preferential tax rate from PRC
enterprise income tax for three years starting from 2008, according to the
New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. Accordingly, the tax rate for MOBI
Shenzhen is 15% for the years ended 3| December 2009 and 2010. The
deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the respective years when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the applicable tax rate
of MOBI Jian is 25% from 2008. In accordance with the tax legislations
applicable to MOBI Jian, it is entitled to exemption from PRC enterprise
income tax for the two years commencing from its first profit making year of
operations in 2006, after offsetting all unexpired tax losses carried forward
from previous years, and thereafter, entitled to a 50% relief from PRC
enterprise income tax of 25% for the next three years. Accordingly, the tax
rate for MOBI Jian is 12.5% for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.

The applicable tax rate of MOBI Xian is 25% for the years ended 3|
December 2009 and 2010.

ARRRNHASESEMKL - BRAESH
FBH  TAXEMAZERBZEMR
R o

BH RN ERIIRT - RERRE
7,%15% °

20084 » B ARIERIFHE - &
YL HRERRRINTERRERR
ERBHBREERR - Bt A REH
o B 4 R AT 15 BO% 1 20084 #E = F U
15%NBERXGRTREERAEH -
B - B LRI 8 ZE 20095 20104
12A31B L FENHEZ15% ° ELHR
BREBELHE  URREREREE
BRIABEFRERRNSFREONR

8

BEFTECEMSHE  BHERE
AT EB2008F B A525%  RIEHEA
RELELROTH - BLE R B20065F
BEANEE CNRIFEEBNMER
MW IEEE) B MER AR RS
XHEH EBA=FRAZERBEACEM
BHEBLRHAFEHESR - Al - HZE
2009F 2010F 1231 B FEEL T
ZHHERE12.5% °

HZE2009F K2010F12R31HIEFEE
L EHERREA25%
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For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F 12 B31 BILEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation as follows:

10. FiBHMAX (@)
FEREXHERANENERMT

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE
2010 2009
2010 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETT

Profit before taxation 75 A1 42 7 98,955 126,438
Tax at PRC Enterprise BHBECEREH

Income Tax at 15% HE15% st EMTHIE (@) 14,843 18,966
Tax effect of expenses not TEFBERERAZNRBTE 572 647

deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not BARBBANT BT E

taxable for tax purpose (1'17) (183)
Tax benefit WA & (b) (1,895) (2.341)
Effect of 50% tax relief granted FELr S RER

to MOBI Jian 50% MR R R X E (1,294) 2,716)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERELL AL

recognised of MOBI Xian HEBENRETE 567 637
Effect of different tax rates SEEENTRFXNTZE

of group entities 2,461 1,811
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate BEERENERARESR

for deferred tax over current tax AHREREERE

on deductible temporary difference BRI IER R E (287) (384)
Others HAth = 2,531
Tax charge for the year FEMBREY 14,850 18,968
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes:

(@) Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of
MOBI Shenzhen, the major subsidiary of the Company which generates majority

of the Group's assessable profit.

(b) Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme that, in addition to the research and
development cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further 50% of

the research and development cost incurred is deductible.

PROFIT AND THE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 1.

YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit and the total comprehensive income for the year has been arrived at

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F 1231 BILFE

FrEHEx (&)

Bif5E

(a) 15%MERASHNEEEEAERKR
BOERBENOARREZF AR E
R EREAMERITE -

(o) FISFIZRIERENRT 2 - BOBRAF B Ak AN E
FRTIESN - BIN0% KT E LR E K
AJRATH0EL o

FERARZEAUARERETLF
REARERAREZEKARLE
HBATEA®R - FEENRZERA

after charging the following items:

BEE

2010 2009
20106 20096
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) EEMe (M 12) 2,659 | 644
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RARBHET IR 7,028 5219
Other staff costs (a) Hih 8 THA(a) 120,06 108,719
Fquity-settled share-based payment expenses ~ MARE# 4 E RIAR M X THFH X = 491
129,748 116,073
Auditors’ remuneration A Gl 1,590 1,630
Operating lease rentals in respect of BANLTEENKEHERS
- prepaid lease payments —ERNEERIE 462 434
- rented premises —BEHEME 6,562 5,776
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% ~ Bi/E K& ETE 17,910 15,114
Amortisation of intangible asset BV EEEH 505 —
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERARBFXNFEERR 786,435 699,718
Write-down of inventories FEMR (GTATHHAX)
(included in administrative expenses) 830 1,017
Loss on disposals of property, HEWME - BER
plant and equipment REHEE — 66
Net exchange loss X BRI 13,796 359

EBRARAR / 2010 £
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For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 A31 BILEFE

1. PROFIT AND THE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE 11. FERAR2ERALER AL T

YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Contd) BEABRGRFRZERALE &

Note: Ptz

(@) Included in other staff costs is RMB2,859,000 (2009: RMB2,248,000), which (a) B ZE2010F12A3MBIEFEE - st AH
represents the rental expense for the staff quarter for the year ended 31 i & T B A B A K % 2,869,000
December 2010. (2009% : AR#2,248,00070) RE T

BEOESRX -

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEREEME
Directors’ emoluments EEMe
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the executive AEEENRENARAINRNITESE
directors and non-executive directors of the Company by the Group are as FRTESHOMEABNT -
follows:
2010
2010
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic

Retirement  salaries, bonus

benefits and allowances)

scheme Hitf <
contributions (FERE

Fees RIKEF E# Total
re SRR R KEE) #gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR®TR AR®BTR ARETR

Executive directors HITES

Hu Xiang B — — 947 947
Wang Guoying FEE — yy) 903 925
Non-executive directors FYTES

Qu Degian EEg 88 — — 88
Xing Qibin TBEH# 88 — — 88
Yan Andrew Y. B 87 — — 87
Yang Dong FR 87 — — 87
Independent directors BUEE

Li Tianshu FRA |57 — — 157
Zhang Han o 140 — — 140
Bao Fan R 140 — — 140

787 22 1,850 2,659
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR RHEE

For year ended 3| December 2010

HE2010E12 A 31 BILEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 12. EEREEME (&)
Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) EEMe (B
2009
20094
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic

Retirement  salaries, bonus

benefits  and allowances)

scheme Hitie

contributions (F28%E
Fees RIKREF JE % - Total
e AR ®e R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETE ARBTE ARBTT AR®TR

Executive directors HITES
Hu Xiang A — — 794 794
Wang Guoying FHE — 20 721 741
Non-executive directors FYTES
Qu Degjan [BEE 3 — — 3
Xing Qibin TBEH 3 — — 3
Yan Andrew Y. Rk 3 — — 3
Yang Dong FR 3 — 23 26
Independent directors BUEE
Li Tianshu FRA 6 — 58 64
Zhang Han G 5 — — 5
Bao Fan BA 5 — — 5
28 20 1,596 644
During the two years ended 31 December 2010, no emoluments were paid by BE2010F12AMBLEMEE - A5E
the Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an VTENESFHRTLESHMA TN
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of & ERBFEMBEANMEREERL
office. None of the directors or the five highest paid individuals has waived any 2R SERBERBMAE - B8E2010F12
emoluments during the two years ended 31 December 2010. AMBLEMEE  BETMNESHLE

BEHEMALRERREAHS -
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HZE2010F 12 B31 BILEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 12. EEREEME B
The five highest paid individuals included two (2009: two) directors for the B ZE 20106124 318 )& 20094 12 A 31
year ended 3| December 2010 and 31 December 2009, details of whose ALEFE  hAAReFMALBEMRA
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2009: (2009 MR EZE - BENMEFE
three) highest paid individuals are as follows: R 3o HBR =% (20095 : =48) &

REFMALOMESEIIMT :

2010 2009
20105 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF R ARETT

Employees E&

- basic salaries and allowances — % KERL 2,200 2,177

- retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIRBHFT B R 66 60

- equity-settled share-based payment expenses — A AEE RIARM XKL = 47
2,266 2,284

Their emoluments were individually less than HKD1,000,000. & A K F B9 E 1,000,000 7T ©
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For year ended 3| December 2010
BZE2010F 1231 BILFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2010 2009
2010%F 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFL  ARETR
Dividends recognised as distribution FRERED RS
during the year:
2007 second dividend of 2007 FEZIRRE
RMBO.1424 per ordinary share BREBRARK 0.1424 T — 10,641
2007 second dividend of 2007 FRE - RBRBEBR
RMBO.1424 per Series A preferred share ARINBEBRARKE 0.1424 T — 4,359
2009 final dividend of 2009 FARHM BB E BK
HKDO.03 per ordinary share 0.03&7T 19,052 —
19,052 15,000

A final dividend of HKDO0.02 per share (2009: final dividend of HKDO0.03 per
share) in respect of the year ended 3| December 2010 amounting to
approximately HKD15,942,000 (equivalent to RMBI3,500,000) has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

HBZE2010F12831B L FEARERE
FR%0.02/8 7T (20095 : KER BB
0.0387T) » & £#915,942,0004 T (%
BEAR®13,500,00070) * AFBRENE
ERRBFEREHERAEE -
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HZE2010F 12 B31 BILEE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREA
The earning figures for calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AUGERRAERREEARGEER
attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are based on the ERARBEERNOBMEFT HRE T
following data: YEHE
2010 2009
20105 200946
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETT

Earnings 27
Profit for the year and attributable FARAREE ARERR
to owners of the Company 84,105 107,470
Less: o
2007 second dividend of 2007 FEZRBEER
RMBO.1424 per Series A preferred share AZFIBEBRARK0.1424 7T — (4,359)
Farnings for purpose of basic earnings per share F{ERT E BRERA T2 7 84,105 103,111
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: TERREEHEENTE
2007 second dividend of 2007 FEZXREER
RMBO.1424 per Series A preferred share ARIBERARE 0.1424 T — 4,359
Earnings for purpose of RETESREFRMNNRT
diluted earnings per share 84,105 107,470
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HE2010E12 A 31 BILEE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 14. BREF (&)
2010 2009
20106 20096
Shares’000 Shares'000
TR Tk
(Restated)
(B&71)
Number of shares RGOEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FA{EaT & B E AR Z F)
for the purposes of basic earnings per share 8 AR IR T 796,436 425,894
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares LTRREESETE
- Conversion of Series A preferred shares —EBARFERER = 161,383
- 2003 share options — 2003 FHE MR 10,107 14,177
- 2005 share options — 2005 FRE R 1E 7,730 12,096
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F{EETE B #E R F
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share B AR JN#E F 15 &K 814,273 613,550
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of earnings AEEREANNERBRMETDEIR
per share has been prepared based on the assumption that the Capitalisation RERMC BT RAREITER2009F 14
Issue and Bonus Issue had been effective on | January 2009 (details of which 1HERMET (F1EH RN 25K

are set out in note 25(a) and (b)). (b)) °
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I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRE

Furniture
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Motor Plant and  Construction
Buildings RE HE vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BF RERRK NX%EE RE BRERRE ERIRE &t
RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBIO0O
ARBTL AREBTR ARETR AR%TR AR%TR ARETR ARETR

cosT BA
At | January 2009 R2009% 17418 58,170 7,669 1,958 3,147 74630 2055 147829
Additions AE 417 1216 7l 674 16,876 6,039 25953
Disposals HE (677) (197) (349) (194) — (1417)
At 31 December 2009 R2009F 128318 58567 8,208 249 347 91312 8,294 172,365
Additions AE 1,145 | 427 4492 680 19,648 44498 71890
Reclassification BB 2,073 2074 697 — 12,493 (37,537) —
Disposals e (%) 9N — (447) — (636)
At 31 December 2010 R2010812A318 81,08 11811 7590 4152 123,006 15,255 243619
DEPRECIATION &
At | January 2009 R2009% 1718 2997 3489 1813 1,894 30,152 — 40,345
Provided for the year ENEE 1,745 1315 3 406 11615 — 15,114
Eliminated on disposals HEHH (626) (197) (331) (115) — (1269)
At 31 December 2009 R 2009% 123318 4741 4178 1 649 1,969 41652 — 54,190
Provided for the year EnffE 2020 1 468 649 478 13295 = 17910
Eliminated on disposals HEHH — (69) 9N - (369) = (529)
At 31 December 2010 ®2010612A318 6,762 5577 2207 2447 54578 — 71571
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2010 R2010812A318 7508 6,234 5,383 1,705 68428 15,255 172,048
At 31 December 2009 20095 12A31 R 53,845 4030 843 1,503 49,660 8,94 118,175
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HE2010612 A31 BILEE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 15. V¥  BERRE ®)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and ME - BERRE (EZIRERIN) 00F
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives ENREFTREHANERELZR
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight- AET B EEREA T EEMBER NG
line method, at the following rates per annum: 1’
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or BT HEFHHI05F
30 years (KB E RE)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 19% BE - EERKHE 19%
Leasehold improvements 50% MEMELE 50%
Motor vehicles 19% A 19%
Plant and machinery 9.5% - 19% T 5 It 88 9.5%Z 19%
The Group's buildings which are situated in the PRC are erected on medium- AEBE (IR B R F IR H L A
term land use rights. R -
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. ANEENRE
2010 2009
20106 2009%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBTR

Land use rights in the PRC A HR B A +
Medium term lease T HEE 21,145 21,607
Analysed for reporting purposes as: WA
Current portion BIERED 462 453
Non-current portion FEENERES 20,683 21,154

21,145 21,607
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HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

17.

108

DEFERRED TAX 17. BEBIE
Excess of
accounting
depreciation
over tax Unrealised
depreciation Allowance for profit of inter-
Allowance SHE doubtful company sales
for inventories  BEBH debts  Provision 2 FIEIHEM Total
FERE HENZE REER Bt REREAN st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTE ARETR ARBTR
At | January 2009 M2009F 1A 18 — 3,068 206 75 2,651 6,000
Credit (charge) to profit or loss EEzBR AR (k) 108 9%l - (75) 336 1,330
At 31 December 2009 M2009F 12 A318 108 4,029 206 2987 7,330
Credit (charge) to profit or loss ZEEZEAE (1K) 5 719 — (2,448) (1,673)
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12 A318 64 4,748 206 — 539 5657
The deferred tax asset as shown on the consolidated statement of financial HREMBRABREKMTNELCHEEER

position is RMB5,657,000 (2009: RMB7,330,000).
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HE2010612 A31 BILEE

DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 17. BEHE (&)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets: ABRECHEBEEE -
2010 2009
20106 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBTR

Tax losses with expiry in: RUATEEIRNBHER
-2013 — 20134 4,131 4,131
-2014 — 2014 % 4,248 4248
- 2015 — 2015 3,779 —
12,158 8,379
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of MR AEE R OEFR - M ERR
future profit streams. BEREEE -
Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared BIER BT - 200851 A1HE
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. HHETFARRRAENERNKEER
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial BNTENR - FEHBHRRAL AR H
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated EfRAEGERARNEREZEARE
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB297,592,000 (2009: 297,692,000t ( 2009 : A K &
RMB210,964,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of 210,964,0007T) sHRIEEHIE - ARA
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences SEAEHRRERERNOKR  BY
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. R Z AR YA A R REE o
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B &&E
Development
costs
BR A
RMB'000
ARBT
COST (DN
Additions and at 31 December 2010 ANENPN2010F12 A 31 H 5,936
AMORTISATION ¥
Charge for the year and at 3| FAM RkR2010F12H31H
December 2010 505
5,431

Development costs on TD-SCDMA antenna system, CDMA 2000, W-CDMA TD-SCDMAX & Z % ~ CDMA 2000 *+ W-
and other base station RF subsystem are internally generated and amortised COMAR E i E 5T AT RF B EK A AR

on a straight-line basis over the 3 years. HEE  NIFAUNEHEHH
19. INVENTORIES 19. B8
2010 2009
20105 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AR®TTT

Raw materials JR ¥} 56,516 63,820
Work-in-progress R 25,026 19,624
Finished goods B4RK fm 226,313 232,013

307,855 315457
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HE2010612 A31 BILEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ESREMEWRRR
2010 2009
20105 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBTR

Trade receivables FEYE 5 Rk 528,541 331,384
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE A (1,371) (1371)
527,170 330,013
Notes receivable S 171,548 201,523
Rental and utility deposits e RHRiEe 1,700 1,924
Advance to suppliers [r] 1t & 78 25 33K 8,729 6,946
Value added tax receivable FENE(E T 17,147 —
Other receivables, other deposits HAhEUARK - Hfhiz&
and prepayments KRR 8,043 19,060
734,337 559,466
There is no movement of allowance for doubtful debts during the two years BE2010512A3MBEMFE - TEX
ended 3| December 2010. RREGEZE -
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade AR ERERETENARE1,371,000
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately RMBI,371,000 (2009: 7T (20094 : AK#1,371,0007T) W E(E
RMBI,371,000), which have defaulted on payment. The Company considers FIRERREZEFBRERER - AR
that the recoverability of these receivables is low and therefore allowance for ARB AR EZERKTIE - &
bad and doubtful debts has been provided. The Group does not hold any B RREERE  ~EBHEREZ
collateral over these balances. ZREAREHER o
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HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 20. EZREMEWERR (&)

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base station
RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry to its trade
customers, which is around 30 to 120 days for a significant number of the Company’s
products, although a longer credit term may be extended to certain customers,
depending on price, the size of the contract, credibility and reputation of the
customers. In order to manage the credit risks associated with trade receivables
effectively, credit limits of customers are evaluated periodically. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness of the new
customer and assesses the potential customer's credit quality Trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record attributable to their

corresponding research on the creditworthiness.

AEBAEFRFPRERBER - &b
FRTEARRBECRNREETEE
BEXNEES ARAAEBERNE
EHIRR0E1208 %A - BETRPHA
FEREMNEEH  RTER  GRAK
N BRPNEREREEMARAR -
REWERRERUESRTEBANEE
Bl ALFEHHEFPNEEREE
T7HE - REERRNEMNHEFH > €
AERBHNBPNERLERFEER
PHEEEZ - BARBHNERENE

T

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade receivables net

of impairment losses at the end of reporting period:

KESERARBEBEEEERSER

FE -

ATRREFHRREER

SRRl

B5 R FRBERBR) 0RERD :

2010 2009
20104 20094

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARET T

0 to 30 days 0%30H 210,959 113,242
31 to 60 days 31E60H 56,557 65,595
61 to 90 days 61 =90 H 49,631 20,453
91 to 120 days 91 120 B 43,203 11,613
121 to 180 days 121 180 A 41,275 21,181
Over 180 days #8:8 180 H 125,545 97,929
527,170 330,013

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes receivables at

ATRAREFRHRREZBHHHNEK

the end of reporting period: FERNRRIN
2010 2009
20105 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETFT
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 37,752 14,382
31 to 60 days 31260 H 50,017 52,704
61 to 90 days 61290 H 38,387 32,324
Over 90 days 838 90 H 45,392 102,113
171,548 201,523
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Aged analysis on credit period of trade receivables which are past due but not

21.

20.

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 831 BILFE

B REMERRR (©)
ERHETERENEREZRIAE

impaired: EHNREENKRRDT :
2010 2009
2010%F 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000
Age iR iR ARETR ARBEF T
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 17 50
31 to 60 days 312 60H — 502
61 to 90 days 61 % 90 H — 581
91 to 120 days 91E120H 17 29
121 to 180 days 121 £ 180 B — 33
Over 180 days #8180 H 4,089 3910
Total st 4,123 5,105

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age

of trade receivables is 149 days (2009: 99 days).

The Group's trade receivables of RMB74,299,000 (2009: RMB45,350,000),
were denominated in USD and EUR, foreign currencies of the respective group

entities.

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/ BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group’s pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original
maturity ranging form 3 months to one year and carry fixed rate interest
ranging from 0.05% to 2.25% per annum during the year (2009: 0.05% to
2.25% per annum). They are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group and notes payables of the Group.

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.02% to |.17% per

annum during the year (2009: 0.01% to |.17% per annum).

21.

AEEMESEREEHNETMIERE -
ZERUKE SR TYKK A1498
(20094 : 99H)

AEBNERBESERRARE
74,299,000 ( 2009%F : A R ¥
45,350,0007T) * AEEEEE BHINE
ExRETIE -

CDEMBRTES BITESHRES
AEENEERRBTERERAFERTE
BERHR=ERZE—F  ZEF0.05E
£2.25EF (2009F : §50.05F £2.25
BE) M EEFE EMBRITFENR  BER
TERRITERFEERTEEREE
BEMNREOER -

AEENRITERRASOERAFE
R e RREF0.02EE1.17E (2009
FBF00IEE11TE)NERB TS
K ERBITER
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HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

2|1. PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/ BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(Contd)
Certain of the Group's pledged bank balance and bank balances and cash with
an aggregate amount of RMB319,323,000 (2009: RMB91,263,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The government of the PRC has implemented foreign
exchange control and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject

to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash of RMBI31,524,000 (2009:
RMB488,545,000), were denominated in USD, EUR and HKD, foreign

currencies of respective group entities.

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

22.

BEARTES ROEREERS
(&
AREETEERARTABRERTER
KB e - &% AR%319323000T
(2009F : AR™91,263,0007T) AAR
BEtE MARBYEBEBEME NS
ARBEE FREBFAETHNEES
KESELPEZINETE R EBAH
B 5B 4

AEEETRTEBRREARE
131,524,0007C ( 2009F @ A R ¥
488,545,0007T) A R EE £ % B HINE
XL BUTRATTEE

ESRHMEMERR
2010 2009
20105 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AR®TTT

Trade payables ERESER 454,587 310,025
Notes payable ANE 131,013 170,278
Payroll payable ERTE 14,080 20,602

Payable for acquisition of property, WEEmE - BE &
plant and equipment R B BR R 1,148 996
Other taxes payable Hfth A 58 18 8,150 7,039
Accrued expenses HIRE A 15,280 18,018
Receipt in advance TR 13,358 5,757
Others 2ty 5,766 5097
643,382 537,812
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HE2010612 A31 BILEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd) 22. ESRHEHMEMNERR (B)
The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade payables at the REFHREEZZEARFANENESE
end of reporting period: HERAOTMAT
2010 2009
20106 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TF R ARETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 80,908 70,555
31 to 60 days 312 60H 73,990 55,324
61 to 90 days 612 90 H 75,751 45,895
91 to 180 days 91 &£ 180 H 165,985 102,147
Over 180 days #2i8 180 H 57,953 36,104
454,587 310,025

Typical credit term of trade payables ranges from 60 to 120 days. ERNESEZRNEESR RN T60E120

E o
The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes payable at the RERMRZEZAHANELRED
end of reporting period: REDITMT -

2010 2009
2010% 2009%
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF R ARETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 12,000 1,106
31 to 60 days 31 £ 60H 59,099 61,985
61 to 90 days 61 % 90 H 21,431 —
Over 90 days 838 90 B 38,483 107,187

131,013 170,278
Typical credit term of notes payable ranges from 90 to 180 days. ERNERNESH KN F0ZE180A -
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HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

23.

116

SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

23. MHRITEM

2010 2009

2010 20094

RMB’000 RMB'000

Categories 5l ARBT T ARETT
Secured BHEM

- Floating rate — 78 — 13,135
Unsecured #4517

- Fixed rate -E8 — 74,000

- Floating rate — 78 — 40,000

— 127,135

At 31st December 2009, the short-term secured floating rate bank borrowings were
denominated in USD and carried at PBOC Rate of 1.39% per annum. These short-
term secured bank borrowings are secured by note receivables of approximately

RMBI 3,111,000 and were wholly repaid during the year.

At 31st December 2009, the short-term unsecured floating rate bank borrowings
carried at PBOC Rate of 4.860% per annum. The short-term unsecured fixed rate
bank borrowings carried fixed interest rates ranging from 4.617% to 5.045% per

annum and were wholly repaid during the year.
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24. DEFERRED INCOME
Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received, for

acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment.

The deferred income is released to the profit or loss over the expected useful

life of the relevant assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 831 BILFE

24, EEW A
I TE U A 5 B Y ER JE 48 % i TR T # B
T ARWBEREEDE  BELR

o

Eid

ERRAZEREEENER A R FH
BABRE - FAETRANES W

as follows: T
2010 2009
20106 2009%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Government grant related to assets HEEFRNBA#EYE
At begining of the year REH] 4,264 3236
Additions NE 2,000 2,209
Released to profit or loss RERBEEA (1,452) (1,181)
At end of the year RERXR 4,812 4264
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Z2®AH
Current portion ENERER & 1,243 765
Non-current portion FERNERE 3,569 3,499
4,812 4264
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BB wRME

For year ended 3| December 2010
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HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 831 BILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

25. KDBRAE (8)

2010 2009
2010 2009 %

Ordinary Series A Ordinary Series A
shares preferred shares Total shares  preferred shares Total
Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent

SEART FEAZS
SEEER ¥, SEAT  FEEER i SEst
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
NP NP N AR AR AR

Issued and fully paid ERTRME

At beginning of the year ~ RAET]] 4,966.53 — 4,966.53 616.28 25242 868.70
Conversion of shares Bk — — — 25242 (252.42) =
Capitalisation Issue BALRET - — — 2,876.02 — 2,876.02
Bonus Issue ALRR AT 494.07 — 494.07 — — —
Exercise of share options {71 & R 12 5.10 — 5.10 23.56 — 23.56
Issued E#1T 125.85 — 125.85 1,198.25 — 1,198.25
At end of the year RER 5,591.55 — 5,591.55 4,966.53 — 4,966.53

Issued capital shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as at

31 D

ecember 2009 and 3| December 2010 was rounded to RMB5,000 and

RMB6,000 respectively.

Note:

(@)

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 25 November 2009, the following
took place on the listing date of |7 December 2009: (i) 30,599,999 Series A
preferred shares were converted into 30,599,999 ordinary shares of a nominal
value of USD0.000001 each;(ii) 19,400,001 unissued Series A preferred shares
were re-designated as ordinary shares of a nominal value of USD0.00000! each;
and (i) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
USD800 divided into 800,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of USD0.00000|
each to USD2,000 by the creation of an additional 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares
of par value of USD0.000001 each.

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 25 November 2009, the directors
were authorised to capitalise an aggregate amount of USD421.24 standing to the
credit of the share premium of the Company and to appropriate such amount as
capital to pay up in full at par 421,234,396 shares for allotment and issue to the
persons whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on 25 November 2009 in the proportion to their then existing
shareholdings in the Company, each ranking pari passu in all respects with the

then existing issued shares (“Capitalisation Issue”).

72009512 A31H K%2010F 12831 B
RAEMBARRBRRS R EBETRAS 5
# A ANRES,0007T & A R#6,0007T °

Wi

(a) RIEFN2009F11 F258 BAKNRE RS
= R ET 2 H2009F 128 170 B #17
TFI=E : (1)30,599, 9990 A % 71| 55 %
814 530,599,9990% % I {20.000001
ZICHEEAL ¢ (i)19,400,001A K 21THY
AR EERESH R TASREE
0.000001E A L BAL : Ki)BBIEE]
1,200,000,0008% & % [ f8.0.0000013 7T
R AR - AR RATE R A 8003 T
(43 £800,000,0004% &A% H {£0.0000013
TOR)EBAR) AN ZE2,000%E T ©

IRIEF2009F 11 B 258 BB R R
BE EFERESARARNDEER
ZEFEBREAN 24ETEREER I
BZEFTIEDEAZHRA - L2009
F11 7268 L EERBR LI RA R
REMMATZRERRABERARER
= I I B2 B R % 17421,234,3960% f%
7 SRBRARSFEHEEREET
BhzaRERE ([EREET] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RN

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

25.

120

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
Note: (Cont'd)

b)  Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on | June 2010, a bonus of
72,446,099 shares is issued to the persons whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis
of one share for every ten shares held on | June 2010, each ranking pari passu in

all respects with the then existing issued shares ("Bonus Issue").

() On |7 December 2009, 175,515,000 ordinary shares of USD0.00000! each of
the Company were issued (“New Issue™) at HKD3.38 by way of placing and
public offer. On the same date, the Company's shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange. On 13 January 2010, the Company issued and allotted 18,443,000
ordinary shares at the offer price of HKD3.38 each (equivalent to approximately
RMB54,888,000 in aggregate) as a result of the exercise of the over-allotment
option granted as part of the public offering of the Company's shares.

Series A preferred shares

Series A preferred shares were convertible at any time at the option of the
holder into ordinary shares at RMBI.7647059 for each preferred share. Series
A preferred shares automatically converted to ordinary shares at
RMB1.7647059 per share upon a fully underwritten initial public offering of not
less than USD6 million (before deduction of underwriters commissions and
expenses) and with a pre-offering valuation of the Company of not less than
USD30 million, which is estimated by the preferred shareholder by reference
to the valuations of other publicly traded companies in the same sector of the
Company, and the listing of the Company's ordinary shares on an
internationally reputable stock exchange reasonably acceptable to holders of
Series A preferred shares (“Qualified IPO").

The holder of each Series A preferred share has the number of votes equal to
the number of ordinary shares into which such Series A preferred share could

be converted to.

No dividends or other distributions shall be made or declared in property, or
in any other shares of the Company, with respect to any other class or series
of shares of the Company apart from the Series A preferred shares, unless and
until dividends or distributions in like amount have been paid or distributed in

full on the Series A preferred shares on an as converted basis.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010

25. RADAFRK (8)

Wi (&

bl  HRER201056F1HBENBRIRE
R RR2010F68 18 BFE TR
BRI —RR G B ELER201056 A1
B & E R A 4 R KA 5 R A AR 3R 4 il
H) A T351772,446,0990 AL BY © FRLAL
BEMEFAEERERITRNZEAR
i ([ lRET]) -

(c) 2009F 128178 ' AR Al BBEE KR
N EPA3.38/8 L #17175,515,000
R% & 1%.0.000001 3 70 £) E 3 A% ( [37 %
111) ° FB + RRARGREE RS
L 22010615138 * ARRRATE
ERRHAREE —HoRHMBER
RiEMZEEETRIISBTEITRE
818,443,000/ Z ik (& £EERD
AR #54,888,0007T) °

ARFIBER

ARFIBERKBIFEANBERRZS
BB eI A R 1.7647059 7L Bk A & A
B o ARDBEBRER DHR600EET (K
e #EEfAe RAZ)N2ERHEER
ARARERAABZEENHEERLR
3,0008 %L (HELXRBRRLBARGRF
BIIEMEM AR ETARNGEREL
HEDABRAT » BARARIMLEBRRNAZR
JIBERIEE A BENNBEBENEES
X B LT ([ABHKIPO)) % » TMEEK
AEH1.7647059 L B BB R RL @R
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25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)
Series A preferred shares (Cont'd)

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the
Series A preferred shareholder shall be entitled to receive, prior and in
preference to any distribution of any of the assets or surplus funds of the
Company to the holders of the ordinary shares or any other class or series of
shares, an amount equal to RMBI1.7647059 for each Series A preferred share
and, in addition, all declared but unpaid dividends (“Series A Preference
Amount"). After full payment of the Series A Preference Amount in respect of
each Series A preferred share, any remaining assets or surplus funds of the
Company shall be distributed to holders of ordinary shares and Series A

preferred shares pro rata on an as converted basis.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share options were granted on I5 January 2003 (“2003 Option”) and 3|
August 2005 (2005 Option”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on |5 January 2013 and 31
August 2015 respectively. Under the share option schemes of the Company,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time
to time, grant share options to an individual consultant or advisor who renders

or has rendered bona fide services to the Company.

At 31 December 2010, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under 2003 Option and
2005 Option was 23,516,500 (2009: 22,107,500), representing 2.95% of the
total ordinary shares of the Company (2009: 3.13% of the total ordinary and

preferred shares) in issue at end of the reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be
exercised at any time from |2 months after the date of grant of the share

options to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

3),

26.

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 831 BILFE

ARFREK ()
ARFIBER ()

AADNRERE - BAEE  ARJIEBL
BRREREDRAAREAEESBH
B T LR EMEMER R ESRG
BBAZE - BRMBEERERARS
BRI REE.7647059T I FE K —1))
BERERIMNHARE (TAREERT
H]) - E2EIHFERARIIELEKRMHA
ZINBERFIER - RAAREMBRTEE
KBHE S BRI (REEREFTE) S
KT EBRRARINBERNFEA -

DRGBZANRS

7 2003% 1 A 158 & 20056 8 A 318 fT
B A ERE (5 51 A [2003F ERE] &
[2005F ERENNETEZENRAESR
REREERERE mMZIERES
5 BI# 2013 18 168 20154 8 A 31
AER - BEARBNBRETE &
AREZEURTAEARESR (BEAD
AREFRRINER) IRB AR ARG
RIBBARAE o o AR R TERA
BRARAREEARBNENERE
fe] o BB el 5 1 B AR A o

72010 12A318 + HiIRIE2003FER
BER2005FBRERLEMARITENE
RAERT D R rEBREE /23,516,500
f& (20094 : 22,107,5008%) * AR F]
RERAREETLARAEEN2.95%
(20095 : {5 & @R KB KR 4& 8 &
3.13%) °

MEFRRLBRENRMSNHE - BR
BAUBRHBEHEF12EAZEREAH
+ A F R A B R 1T 68
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RN

For year ended 3| December 2010
HZ2010F12 A31 BILFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

26. URBXANHRE (&)
BRENABEENFBOT

Exercise price
(before Capitalisation Issue Fair value

and Bonus Issue) (note)  at grant date

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period TEECRTERE RRLAH

BRESRR =k BB 175 5 BOTRAKRET) (M) MATE

2003 Option 15/01/2003 15/01/2003 to 14/01/2007 15/01/2004 to 14/01/2013 RMBI.76 RMB0.95

2003F BEM#E 2003F1A158 2003F1A15A% 20041R158 % ARB1.76T AR#0.957T
2007618148 201318 14H

2005 Option ~ 31/08/2005 31/08/2005 to 30/08/2009 31/08/2006 to 30/08/2015 RMB3.66 RMBI 36

2005 BEMk#E 200548A31H 2005F8A31HZE 20068 A31EE AR#3.66T ARE1367T
200968 A30H 2015 8H 301

Note: the exercise prices of 2003 and 2005 option have been adjusted to RMB0.3208
and RMB0.6655, respectively, due to Capitalisation Issue and Bonus Issue.

All 2003 option and 2005 option are exercisable as to 25% of the total
number of options on the first anniversary date of grant, and as to the
remaining 75% in 36 subsequently equal monthly installments commencing on
the last day of the month following the month of the first anniversary date of

grant.
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BisE : 20036 K%2005F BB ENTFEERE
AMeBEARARETMOAABRZA
R %0.32087 & A R#0.66557T °

FTH 20035 BB R4 R 20055 BB R AE PN 15
PAEERAFARTAERERELEN
25% ' M TH75%F19 9D B36H - i
Rt r—AFEAMBAGMNT —E
A& —BHRREATE -



26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i
o)

BA RS SRR M R

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 831 BILFE

26. UBRBEXANRZ (&)

TREBCERALRENARAER

by eligible persons during 2010: R 20104 i) &
Adjustment of Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Forfeited Bonus Exercised Expired at
at 112010 during during issue during during 31.12.2010
#0108 the year the year i1k the year the year #0108
IAIA RER RER 3 RER RER NAAA
Option type RRERA GEXH Ril Rl A 14 fif EW  HATE
2003 Option 2003 FEMRE 11,200,000 - - 1,118,000 (20,000) — 12,298,000
2005 Option 2005 B g 10,907,500 = = 1,041,750 (730,750) = 1,218,500
22,107,500 = = 2,159,750 (750,750) — 23,516,500
Exercisable at the end
of the year TREXRE 23,516,500
Bxercise price T%E
2003 Option 2003 FEMRE RMBO.352 - —  RMB03208  RMBO.3S —  RMB0.3208
AR#0.3527C AR®0.320870 AR%0.3527 AR%0.32087
2005 Option 2005 B E RMB(.732 = —  RMBO.6655 RMBO.7101 —  RMBO.6655
ARM0.7327 AE®0.66557 AR%0.71017 ARH0.66557
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 26. URBXANRS (8)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options held TERBEESERATRENAARER
by eligible persons during 2009: TR 20094 ) &
Adjustment of Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Forfeited  capitalisation Exercised Expired at
at 112009 during during issue during during 31.12.2009
#0098 the year the year Bxf the year the year R 20095
IAIH RER RER £ RER RER  12A31H
Option type RRERA HATE Rif L P14 i ER HRfE
2003 Option 2003 FEMRE 2750000 — — 11,000,000 (2550000) - 11,200,000
2005 Option 2005 £ B HE 2515500 — (154000) 9,446,000 (900,000) — 10907500
5265500 — (154000) 20,446,000 (3450000) — 22,107,500
Exercisable at the
end of the year ARERITE 2,107,500
Exercise price i3 RMBI 76 — —  RMBO32  RMBO33 —  RMBO3S2
2003 Option 2003 FERE ARE 17670 AE¥0352 7T ARK03527C ARE 03527
2005 Option 2005 FEMRE RMB3.66 — RMB3.66 RMBO.732 RMBO.732 - RMBO.732
AR 3667 AR¥366T ARK0T2T ARMOTT ARB 07327
The 2003 Option and 2005 Option were granted on |5 January 2003 and 3| 20034 #% % # ) 20055 B ik # 2 5 ®
August 2005, respectively, with estimated fair value on the grant date of 20034 1A 158 K& 2005% 84 31H &
RMB0.95 and RMBI .36, respectively. o REEBENEF L TFESRAA

R#0.95T R ARK1.367T -
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 831 BILFE

26. UBRBEXANRZ (&)

FRRAFERGRE -HRBHREE

BEUFE - GABRNBEMT

2003 2005

2003 20055

Option Option

BRE BRE

Fair value of ordinary share TakOAFE RMBI.76 RMB3.66
ARE176T AR¥3.667T

Exercise price 171EE RMBI.76 RMB3.66
AR¥176 T AR¥3.667T

Expected volatility TEHR 1R 78.00% 45.00%
Expected life T8 H A 1 5 years 6 years
b F 6

Risk-free rate R R 391% 4.57%
Expected dividend yield R E = 3.00% 3.00%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the

comparable companies’ share prices over the previous 260 trading days. The

expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s

best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural considerations.

In relation to share options granted by the Company, which were fully vested

in 2009, the Group recognised the total expense of RMB49 1,000 as research

and development costs, distribution and selling expenses as well as

administrative expenses in the year ended 31 December 2009.

BHKERAIELRRARNERRE
£260ARH B MELNIEETE © REFH
ANEREHERBEEEER AT E
# TERHIRTRERAZNFEN
RIEMBFEHAR -

BRADR AR LI ER2009F 2 85 B
BB - B E2009F 128318 L F
[§ - REBE HERHZARKEL91,000
TAERMERAR  HHREERMT
BRX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 27. REHERH
The Group as lessee AEBEREBA
At the end of reporting period, the Group was committed to make the RERBR  KAEBERBFIAIHEL
following future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises under EMNAFERAEBYES MR Tl
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: REBMORRZEEESWOT
2010 2009
20105 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETT

Within one year —FR 6,921 9,607
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFLF (BEMFEREEA) 17,744 25,186
24,665 34,793
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of one to five years. MEDLHEmE  —2LFHEHANNHE
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BXAERE
2010 2009
20105 200946
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TFR ARBTE

Capital expenditure contracted for but not BERNBYE BB X

provided in the consolidated financial REBOEITNERBEGE
statements in respect of the acquisition MBREBEHENERFX
of property, plant and equipment 42,953 1,899
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local government. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian
and MOBI Xian are required to contribute 10%, 20% and 20%, respectively, of
the payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit scheme

is to make the specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted
to RMB4,815000 for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
RMB5,239,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Group has the following significant transactions with
Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. which is controlled by a group of
common controlling shareholders of the Company and Shenzhen
Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. (details of which are set out in the

prospectus of the Company dated 4 December 2009).

The significant transaction between the Group and Shenzhen

Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. are as follows:

28},

30.

e B mERME

For year ended 3| December 2010
BZ2010F12 831 BILFE

EHRERE
AEENEEHABNRUNBERE
BRABHFENKE - BRI E
HERRELAREDRIRIER AN
10% * 20% K& 20% [ 2R K £& ¥l 51 &
BIERBBHOES - ZERAIMERNK
RRGEREERNELEEM®K

BZ2010F12A31HILEE  REH(E
HORAKBAFERRAEARE
4,815,0007T (20094 : A E#5,239,000
o) °

BEALRS

(a) RFER - AEEEFY TR ELER
BREERAAETUTEAR
S RMImpEELEBREERD
A —HEAR AR ERRE
RARY TR B RmEREER DA
izl (EAFEERARAR
2009512 A48 HIEMBRERE) -

AEEERYTRRELBREE
RARETHNEAZZWT

2010 2009

2010F 2009%

RMB’000 RMB'000

Nature of transactions REME ARETT ARET T
Rental expenses MexH 933 727
2010 2009

20105 2009%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

Related party balances BEALER ARBT T ARETF T
Other receivables H b e U BR 5K 72 28]
Other payables HAth &~ BR 5K 2 2

Note: The balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

g BRAERER  RERNERY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 30. BEALTRS (B
(b) Compensation of key management personnel ) FEEBABHRM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management EERIZEBREEMKENT M
were as follows: mr
2010 2009
2010 20095
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF R ARETT

Short-term benefits SRR 7,284 5,674
Post-employment benefits BEBR 1A 177 160
Equity-settled share-based A=A E R
payment expenses PARR 17 32 A+ 89 7 32 = 129
7,461 5963
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having EERIETHABNEFEMIRE
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. BAARBRRTIGBEMERE -
The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid BE2010512R31BEMEE - —
by Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co, Ltd. during the two years ended 3| LZEEMRREME 2 XA R
December 2010. MHEETRREFRRAIXM -
31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 3. EXERERS
During 2010, 72,446,099 bonus shares were issued, by the capitalisation of 2010 « BEGKRM G ERBEEEREIT
share premium account. During 2009, 421,234,396 shares were issued by the 72,446,099/ 4L % © 20095 - 421,234,396
capitalisation of share premium account. R DR IR AR B AR & AL T AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR RHEE

For year ended 3| December 2010

HE2010612 A31 BILEE

32. ARBFEFATFE
BEME2HBER KRR FARFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company's

subsidiaries are as follows: mr
Issued and Equity interest
Place and date fully paid attributable
Name of subsidiary of establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
FRARAER Rt A M ERTRAREMES rEBEGEE  TEERH
2010 2009
20104 2009 F
MOBI Shenzhen(” PRC RMB220,000,000 100% 100% Production and sale of
B R0 12 August 1999 AR 220,000,000 7T antennas and radio
H frequency subsystems
1999587128 EERHERRNER
EHRT RS
MOBI Jian® PRC RMB33,000,000 100% 100% Production and sale of
EHERO 23 May 2006 AR 33,000,000 7T antennas and radio
H frequency subsystems
2006 %5 A23 A LERBERBNER
EHATEAR
MOBI Xian PRC RMB120,000,000 100% 100% Production and sale of
Bt % 29 April 2008 AR 120,000,000 7T antennas and radio
i frequency subsystems
200854 71 29H TERBERGNER
EHATER
MOBI HK" Hong Kong HKDI 100% N/A Trading, services, marketing
BLEA 5 December 2010 | BT eyl and investment
Bt 85 B mHERE
20104 12/15R Rix&

O BEERI B ERRELBERAR
AIEEHA o

()" MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI HK are directly held by the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R R A

For year ended 3| December 2010

HZE2010F12 B31 BILEE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 33. KA FMBMRRBR

130

2010 2009
2010 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T

Non-current assets FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RFRAMIEE 253,000 32,786
Amount due from subsidiaries i G RNGIE S 213,847 —
466,847 32,786

Current assets BB E
Trade and other receivables B 5 I EH b fE I BR 51 [,107 16,067
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR LIRS 41,573 483,504
42,680 499,57
Current liabilities mEBE

Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNERR 4,555 5,726
Dividend payable FERTAR B 735 758
5,290 6,484
Net current assets REEEFHE 37,390 493,087
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAE 504,237 525,873

Capital and reserves R K&
Issued capital BBETRA 6 S
Share premium 154 B 572,675 537,636
Reserves G (68,444) (11,768)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR R %A ALK E 504,237 525,873

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2010



MOBI EE Lt

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

B k& RARL2E

www.mobi-antenna.com




	封面

	公司簡介
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務概要
	主席報告書
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事及高級管理層
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益報表
	綜合財務狀況報表
	綜合權益變動報表
	綜合現金流量報表
	綜合財務報表附註
	封底


